Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Rochdale South Township Committee
Tuesday, 3rd August, 2021
6.00 pm.
Hollingworth (Room 108ABC), First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Appointment of Vice Chair
To appoint the Rochdale South Township Committee’s Vice Chair –
2021/2022

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Minutes
Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held
16th February 2021.

6

Open Forum
Up to half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to
raise issues of concern that affect the Township.

4-5

7

Castleton Station area Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

6 - 64

A draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), for the Castleton
Station area to support the continued regeneration and renewal of the
area.
8

Objection to Proposed Traffic Order, Waiting Restrictions, Back
Drake Street, Rochdale

65 - 71

To consider objections to a Traffic Regulation Order
9

Rochdale South Township Delegation and Appointments
2021/2022

72 - 77

To approve the Committee’s delegation arrangements and appoint to
various bodies – 2021/2022
10

Rochdale South Township Funds Review

78 - 109

A review of Rochdale South Township Funds 2020/2021
11

Rochdale South Township Funds 2021/22
To consider applications for assistance from the Rochdale South
Township Fund 2021/2022

110 - 177

Rochdale South Township Committee Members
Councillor Shakil Ahmed
Councillor Daalat Ali
Councillor Stephen Anstee
Councillor Allen Brett
Councillor Jean Hornby
Councillor Philip Massey
Councillor Daniel Meredith
Councillor Kathleen Nickson
Councillor Aasim Rashid
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Angela Smith
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
Councillor Elsie Wraighte
Councillor Sameena Zaheer
Councillor Mohammed Zaman (Chair)
For more information about this meeting, please contact:Peter Thompson
Committees and Constitutional Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Telephone – 01706 924715
E-mail – peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 16 February 2021
PRESENT: Councillor Zaman (Chair); Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Daalat Ali,
Brett, Meredith, Nickson, Sheerin, Sullivan Wraithe and Zaheer
OFFICERS: J. Simpson and R. Hudson (Neighbourhoods), M. Garraway
(Resources)
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Blundell (Cabinet Member for A Thriving
Economy), D. Grice (Link4Life).
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Farnell and Councillor Hornby
49

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Zaheer declared a personal interest in the agenda item pertaining
to Link4Life as a board member.

50

OPEN FORUM
There were no items for the open forum.

51

LINK4LIFE
The Deputy Chief Executive of Link4Life addressed the Committee updating
Members on activities undertaken by Link4Life within the Township and
committing to provide further updates at future meetings.

52

MINUTES
RESOLVED
That the Minutes held on the 4 November 2020 be approved as a correct
record.

53

ROCHDALE STATION AREA SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT
(SPD)
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving
Economy / Director of Economy which sought approval for consultation of a
draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for the Rochdale Station area
to support the continued regeneration and renewal of the area by providing
detailed planning and design advice; and seeking approval for delegation to
the Head of Planning to make any final minor amendments to the draft
Supplementary Planning Document prior to the commencement of the formal
consultation period.
Alternatives considered
To not produce a Supplementary Planning Document could undermine a coordinated place making strategy for the Rochdale Station area; instead having
to deal with this via stand-alone planning applications. Proposals for
investment and development would have to be considered on a piecemeal
basis, rehousing residents within the local area, close to their existing home

Page 4

and the Town Centre, would become challenging, and housing market failure
will not be addressed. There was a risk that the opportunity for a significant
number of new homes within this area, adjacent to the Town Centre, was not
delivered.
RESOLVED
1. That the Draft Supplementary Planning Document for the Rochdale Station
area be approved for consultation.
2. That the Head of Planning be approved to amend the document prior to
consultation.
Reason for resolution
Supplementary Planning Documents build upon and provide more detailed
advice or guidance on the policies in the Local Plan. Regulations 11 to 16 of
the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
set out the requirements for producing SPDs. Regulation 12 requires that
consultation is undertaken prior to the adoption of an SPD.
54

CREATE 2 FOOTPATHS OVER LAND AT SPRINGHILL
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for A Thriving
Economy / Director of Economy which sought approval for a definitive map
modification order to add the footpaths under Section 25 Highways Act 1980
and alter the definitive map and statement to show the routes.
Alternatives considered
To refuse to make the order under Section 25 Highways Act 1980, however
the Council will have to proceed with the applicant’s application under Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981 and the footpaths that impede other recreational
activities.
RESOLVED
1. That the definitive map modification order be approved to add the
footpaths under Section 25 Highways Act 1980 and alter the definitive map
and statement to show the routes as set out within the submitted report.
2. That following receipt of any instructions from the Head of Environmental
Services, the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) be
authorised to prepare the appropriate legal documents and execute such
documents on behalf of the Council.

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

Report to rochdale South Towwnship Committee

Date of Meeting

3rd August 2021

Portfolio

Cabinet Memebr for
Economy and
Communications

Report Author

Kirsty Nicholls

Public/Private Document

Public

Castleton Station area Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

Executive Summary
1.1

As part of the Council’s Rail Corridor Regeneration Strategy, a draft
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been produced for the
Castleton Station area to support the continued regeneration and renewal of
the area by providing detailed planning and design advice. This report seeks
the views of the Committee on the content of the Draft SPD as part of a
consultation along with key stakeholders.

Recommendation

2.1

Members of the Township Committee are requested to note the content of the
Draft Supplementary Planning Document for the Castleton Station area, and
comment on its key objectives and proposals as part of a consultation along
with key stakeholders, residents and businesses.
Reason for Recommendation

3.1

As set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, Supplementary
Planning Documents build upon and provide more detailed advice or
guidance on the policies in the Local Plan. Regulations 11 to 16 of the Town
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 set out

Page 6

the requirements for producing SPDs. Regulation 12 requires that
consultation is undertaken prior to the adoption of an SPD.
Key Points for Consideration
Background
4.1

4.2

4.3

The regeneration and improvement to Castleton represents a strategic
priority for the Council and forms a significant part of the Council’s Rail
Corridor Regeneration Strategy which seeks to bring forward vacant land
and buildings around our existing rail stations and promote sustainable
urban living, access to public transport and reduced car dependency. The
Castleton Masterplan will contribute to the wider housing strategy for new
and improved housing offer in the area within walking distance of the station,
exploiting its connectivity to the strategic road and rail network to regenerate
under-utilised land and buildings and support further planned investment in
transport infrastructure.
The Council is seeking to promote transit led integrated development and
place making around existing stations with the aim of unlocking the dormant
potential of Castleton station through dynamic urban regeneration and the
creation of a Transport-Orientated Community (TOC). The approach aims to
add commercial benefit through access to transport but critically also aims to
realise social value and provide a ‘place led’ approach.
Working with partners through the GM Stations Alliance, Rochdale Borough
Council (RBC) are working towards a regeneration plan for the Castleton
area, which is to include the following:







4.4

The improvements to the Railway Station
Proposals for tram – train services operating between Oldham and
Bury via Heywood
The extension of the East Lancashire Railway (ELR) Heritage Line
The Cycle Corridor/Bee Network on Manchester Road
Improvements to station car parking, and
The opening up of the canal to promote tourism and recreation
through the regeneration of several residential and commercial
development sites.

Castleton Station’s redevelopment and regeneration potential is an
important vision which offers residents and businesses an opportunity to
develop a sustainable community with a vibrant mixture of living, working
and recreational opportunities.

Page 7

4.5

There is strong market interest in the Castleton area. This Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) has been prepared to establish an appropriate
framework to guide and deliver development by setting out the development,
design and accessibility principles, and the identification of focus areas
where more specific guidance is necessary. Over £3m of devolved GMCA
funding for transport and housing schemes within the Castleton area has
already been secured. The SPD will also be used by the Council and its
partners to support further applications for grant funding to bring forward
housing and commercial sites and investment in infrastructure to support the
delivery of the Castleton station masterplan.
Participation and consultation so far

4.6

4.7

The Council worked with the GM Stations Alliance, a newly established
partnership between Rochdale Council, GM Combined Authority, Network
Rail, LCR Property, East Lancashire Railway and Transport for Greater
Manchester to prepare a masterplan for the existing stations within the
Borough. Preparation of the Castleton Station Masterplan has been widely
consulted on with stakeholders’ within the area.
To date there have been several workshops, which have helped to inform the
key aims and objectives of each Focus Area, as defined in the Draft
Supplementary Planning Document.

4.8

Purpose of a SPD

4.9

The proposed Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) will provide a
development strategy for the Castleton Station area and guide uses of land
and buildings with a consolidation of the Local Centre focussed around the
rail station. It outlines potential development opportunities within the area
including options for the scale and mix of future proposals on a number of
different sites. The SPD will provide further detailed guidance in order to
achieve coherent and comprehensive development within the area and
ensure the delivery of the necessary new infrastructure.

There is also an opportunity to make more of Castleton Centre as a location,
creating places where people want to come and live and helping to make the
4.10
area thrive.
The SPD will also be used by the Council as a material consideration when
4.11 determining future planning applications.
The SPD will therefore provide further detail on how relevant policies in the
Local Plan will be applied to the sites and principles for how development of
the sites would best be taken forward. Notably policy C2 – Focusing on
regeneration areas and economic growth corridors/areas, which specifically
sets out key development principles and proposes the following:

Page 8




Focus regeneration and the delivery of a new station area, including
homes, retail, leisure and commercial options
Improve the environment, public realm and legibility from the station
to the local centre

4.12 The Supplementary Planning Document content
The following is a summary of the content and structure within the consultation
draft SPD:
Introduction, vision,
purpose and status
of the SPD
Background,
planning
policy
framework, relevant
plans and strategies

Explains why the SPD has been produced and how
it is structured.

Development
Context

Describes the SPD area and provides a spatial
portrait of the site. It also looks at the relationship
with the adjoining areas.

Development
Principles

Establishes the principles and parameters to guide
future development for the next 10-15 years in the
surrounding area. Specifically looking at:
 Promote a residential led masterplan that
integrates employment, social and
community infrastructure, to support the
future growth and development of Castleton;
 Define a village centre by concentration
around the station and Manchester
Road/Albion Street Triangle;
 Improve the sense of arrival and gateway
experience, including new station entrance
and facilities;
 Restrict HGV movements along Manchester
Road through Castleton Centre;
 Provision of new and expanded car parking
around the station.

Design Principles

Sets out an approach for landowners to follow when
designing their schemes which will help ensure a
high standard of design comes forward. Specifically
looking at:
 Public Realm
 Heights and massing

Transport
Access

Sets out the broad policy framework that applies to
the site, highlights the main Local Plan policies and
relevant key plans and strategies that have informed
the SPD.

and Explains what the concept of Transport Orientated
Communities and which parking considerations,
vehicle movements and connections are required

Page 9

within the SPD area and how transport issues will be
considered in policy terms.
Focus areas

Sets out three broad areas of focus – each with
different development considerations and guidance
suitable for that area. It also sets out principles for
the form and the types of uses which would be
permitted within the potential focus areas, such as
improving and creating new connections and public
spaces, improved public realm, providing a mix of
types and styles of homes for the community.
The 3 focus areas are:




Station Area South
Station Area North
Lower Queensway & Albion Street Triangle

Delivery
and Explains how the development and infrastructure set
Implementation
out in the SPD is needed to support it will be secured
and delivered.

Next Steps
Members of the Committee are requested to note the content of the Draft
Supplementary Planning Document for the Castleton Station Gateway area,
and comment on its key objectives and proposals as part of a forthcoming
consultation with key stakeholders, residents and businesses. The
documents are being subject to public consultation for a period of six weeks,
beginning the 28th June 2021.
Alternatives considered
Not producing this SPD will result in less clarity in terms of guidance to
applicants and developers within this important regeneration area. This may
result in proposals which do not properly deal with planning requirements
and result in poorer quality schemes being submitted. Furthermore, there
could be a consequence should the Council consider to invoke its powers
through the Compulsory Purchase Order process.

Costs and Budget Summary

Page 10

5.1

Adoption of the document has the potential to generate significant
external funding and will be used by the Council and GM Stations
Alliance partners to support further applications for funding for
transport, housing and infrastructure projects.

5.2

There are no specific financial implications arising from the
recommendations within this report or for the Council’s involvement
in the process at this stage. Consultation costs will be covered by
existing planning budgets.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
Regulations 2012 (“2012 Regulations”) sets out the procedures to
be followed by local planning authorities in relation to the
preparation of supplementary planning documents. This includes
the public participation arrangements set out in Regulation 12.

6.2
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 (as amended)
temporarily removes the requirement to make certain documents
available for inspection at principal offices and other places. A
document will be taken to be made available when it is published
on the local planning authority’s website. The requirement to
provide hard copies on request is also temporarily removed.
6.3

6.4

In addition to the above, the Council must also adhere to the
consultation and engagement procedures set out in its Statement
of Community Involvement.
There are no other specific legal implications arising from the
recommendation in this report.

Consultation
7.1

The Council has begun publicising and consulting for a period of
six weeks week beginning 28th June 2021. During this time the
document and supporting information will be published on the
Council’s website. Due to restrictions that have arisen due to
Covid-19, no paper copies are being provided within public
buildings.

Page 11

7.2

Stakeholders on the Council’s planning policy database will be
notified by letter or email.

Background Papers

Place of Inspection

Draft Castleton Station area
SPD

Council website

Council Website
Consultation Statement
Council Website
Equalities Impact Assessment

For Further Information
Contact:

Kirsty Nicholls, Principal Planning
Officer
Kirsty.nicholls@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12

Castleton Station
Supplementary Planning
Document
Draft July 2021

Page 13

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Document Control
Document Title: Castleton Station Supplementary Planning
Document, Draft July 2021
Summary
Publication Date

July 2021

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Related Legislation / Applicable Section Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
of Legislation
The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations
2012
Rochdale Core Strategy (2016)
Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Documents
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Replaces
Joint Policy (Yes/No)

No

Name of Partner(s) if joint

N/A

Policy Owner (Name/Position)

Paul Moore (Head of Planning Services)

Policy Author (Name/Position)

Kirsty Nicholls (Principal Planning Officer)

Applies to

Review of Policy
Last Review Date
Review undertaken by
Next Review Date

Document Approvals
This document requires the following approvals.
Name

Title

Paul Moore

Head of Planning

rochdale.gov.uk

Date of Issue

Page 14

Version Number

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS
1.

Introduction ......................................................................................................................................................... 3
1.1 Introduction

3

1.2 The Vision

3

1.3 Purpose and status of the SPD

4

2.

Background........................................................................................................................................................... 5

3.

Context ................................................................................................................................................................. 9

4.

Development Principles ..................................................................................................................................... 12

5.

Design Principles ....................................................................................................Error! Bookmark not defined.

6.

Transport and Access ........................................................................................................................................ 20

7.

Character Areas .................................................................................................................................................. 26

8.

Focus Areas ............................................................................................................Error! Bookmark not defined.

9.

Delivery and Implementation ............................................................................................................................ 34

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 15

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

1.

Introduction

1.1

Introduction

The regeneration and improvement to Castleton represents a strategic priority for the Council to contribute to the
wider housing strategy for new and improved housing offer in the area, exploit its connectivity to the strategic road
and rail network, regenerate under-utilised land and buildings and support further planned investment in transport
infrastructure. Working with landowners and partners through the GM Stations Alliance, Rochdale Borough Council
(RBC) are working towards a regeneration plan for the Castleton area, which is to include the Railway Station,
proposals for tram – train services operating between Oldham and Bury via Heywood, the extension of the East
Lancashire Railway (ELR) Heritage Line, the cycle corridor/Bee Network on Manchester Road, and promote the
redevelopment of several residential and commercial development sites. The Council is seeking to promote transit
led integrated development and place making around existing stations with the aim of unlocking the dormant
potential of Castleton station through dynamic urban regeneration and the creation of a Transport-Orientated
Community (TOC). The approach aims to add commercial benefit through access to transport but critically also aims
to realise social value and provide a ‘place led’ approach.
Castleton’s redevelopment and regeneration potential is an important vision which offers residents and businesses
an opportunity to develop a sustainable community with excellent transport links, including into Manchester City
Centre, with a vibrant mixture of living, working and recreational opportunities. Pre the Covid-19 pandemic in March
2020, there were at least two rail services per hour into Manchester Victoria with a journey time of 16 minutes.
Castleton lies on a bus corridor with 10 minute frequency services into Rochdale, Middleton and Manchester City
Centres.
This Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been prepared to establish an appropriate framework to guide
and deliver development by setting out the development, design and accessibility principles, and the identification of
focus areas where more specific guidance is necessary. The Plan forms part of a wider network of regeneration
plans along the Rochdale Rail corridor as part of the Councils vision to tackle climate change through the delivery of
new housing and commercial space around the Borough’s rail stations, reduce car dependency and promote
sustainable travel and active, healthier, urban living.

1.2

The Vision

The redevelopment of the station area will recognise the rich heritage in Castleton; draw on its characteristics and
amplify these to create a modern and distinctive identity centred within and around the Station area. The vision is to
define a new heart for Castleton and to create a sustainably connected community through improved transport links.
Improvements to residential, commercial, landscape, public realm and associated infrastructure will be for the
benefit of the current community, the wider surroundings and future residents. This SPD will also support ongoing
plans for the regeneration of Rochdale Town Centre and delivery of Northern Gateway.
The vision for Castleton includes:



High quality, residential led development that integrates employment, social and community infrastructure
that supports the future growth and development of Castleton.
Defining a focused local centre for Castleton that is centred around maximising the grouping of the station,
canal, square and historic buildings , with a focus upon enhanced facilities and services for the existing and
future community;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 16

3

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021




1.3

Creating a gateway experience to Castleton that is integrated with the town’s tourism offer through the
extension of the East Lancashire Heritage Railway, Tram-Train links and through the revitalisation of the
Rochdale Canal and historic buildings;
Creating a multimodal movement network that has sustainable travel, accessibility and local connections
with walking and cycling at its heart; by making the area more pedestrian friendly as well as redirecting large
vehicles away from the main centre.

Purpose and status of the SPD

The purpose of this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is to provide a land use planning and transport strategy
for the Castleton Station area. It outlines potential development opportunities within the area, to exploit the
accessibility of the area and its public transport connectivity, including identifying options for the scale and mix of
future proposals to regenerate a number of derelict brownfield sites.
The SPD elaborates upon policies within the Rochdale Core Strategy (2016), notably policy SP3/R – The Strategy for
Rochdale which provides a vision and strategy for the township. The policy has as one of its priorities to regenerate
Castleton and Sudden by delivering a package of projects.
The SPD will also be used by the Council as a material consideration when determining future planning applications
and to establish a framework for investment building upon the policies contained within the Council’s Core Strategy
document and the Masterplan which:





Sets out a development vision for the area;
Provides greater certainty on the uses, form and quality of acceptable development, including the public
realm and guidance for development partners on how this might be achieved;
Assists the Council in the assessment of planning applications; and
Provides a basis for future decision on assembling land to provide certainty, including the potential use of
Compulsory Purchase Orders.

It is not the purpose of this SPD to seek to displace successful local businesses. A large part of the area is covered by
a Primary Employment Zone which seeks to protect these sites for employment use. However, where sites become
available and development for non-employment uses is considered appropriate, this SPD sets out potential uses and
opportunities for these sites to support continued wider regeneration of the area.
Technical evidence
1. WSP/ Broadway Malyan & GL Hearn – part of the GM2080 team provided technical support on design and
townscape illustrations. More information on the design approach that informed the SPD is provided in the
design principles section which can be found in…
2. WSP/ Broadway Malyan & GL Hearn provided support on the accessibility and movement strategy. More
information on the accessibility approach that informed the SPD is provided within the Transport section can
be found in Chapter 6
3. WSP/ Broadway Malyan & GL Hearn provided technical support in terms of viability and delivery strategy
underpinning the masterplan. More information on phasing and delivery can be found in Chapter X
4. The Council worked with the GM Stations Alliance, a newly established partnership between Rochdale
Council, GM Combined Authority, Network Rail, LCR Property and Transport for Greater Manchester.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 17

4

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

2.

Background

2.1

Policy Context

The document is designed to supplement the Rochdale Core Strategy (2016) policy C2 – Focusing on regeneration
areas and economic growth corridors/areas, E2 – Increasing Jobs and Prosperity and E3 - Focusing on economic
growth corridors and areas. These policies should be read in conjunction with all national and local planning policy
and guidance documents including those outlined below. Also any other relevant documents which may emerge
during the lifetime of this document as material considerations.

2.2

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

The Framework sets out national planning policy, providing strategic direction on a wide range of planning matters. It
is supplemented by Planning Practice Guidance which gives further guidance on how policy should be interpreted.
At the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. This presumption should be
reflected in the plan-making process and any associated guidance. The Framework states that development should
be approved unless any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits of that development.
The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment, which creates better places in
which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities. Planning policies and decisions
should ensure that development responds to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting; however, authorities should not prevent or discourage appropriate innovation
or change. The Framework seeks to ensure that developments establish or maintain a strong sense of place,
optimising the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix that function well,
are safe, inclusive and accessible.
The SPD has been positively prepared. It seeks to regenerate and attract investment into the area and wider
Rochdale Town Centre, taking forward identified opportunities to meet the housing needs and aspirations of the
area’s community both now and in the future.

2.3

Core Strategy (2016)

Rochdale Core Strategy (2016) is the key development plan for Rochdale and will be used when determining planning
applications for sites within the Castleton Station area. Strategic Objective SP3/R requires the regeneration of
Castleton.
This SPD will support the Spatial Vision for the borough for regeneration and housing growth, including building on
the local character, heritage value and assets of the area (Policies P1, P2, P3).
Key policy implications are set out in relation to each site identified in this SPD (Section X) but it will be important to
consider all the relevant policies of the Core Strategy when preparing site-specific proposals.
The Core Strategy identifies the following development policies relevant to this documents:



E1 - Establishing thriving town, district and local centres
E2 - Increasing jobs and prosperity

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 18

5

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021





E3 - Focusing on economic growth corridors and areas
C1 - Delivering the right amount of housing in the right places; and
T1 - Delivering sustainable transport

Other relevant documents/projects relevant to this SPD:






Transport for Greater Manchester 2040 Transport Strategy and draft Delivery Plan (2020-2025)
Rochdale Borough Growth Plan 2020 – 2030
East Lancashire Railway 2020 – 2030 Development Strategy
Tram Train Pathfinder Project and “Restoring our Railways” Proposals
Bee Network

Places For Everyone Joint Development Plan
Up until December 2020 a joint development plan document of the ten Greater Manchester local authorities was
being prepared, Greater Manchester’s Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment (known as the “GMSF”).
Following the decision of Stockport to withdraw from the GMSF, the remaining nine districts agreed to progress a
joint development plan for the remaining nine districts to be known as ‘Places for Everyone’ (PfE). A new joint
committee has been formed to progress PfE with the intention to move to the next stage of plan preparation subject
to approval by the nine individual districts.
The main benefits of producing a Joint Development Plan include:

Underpinning Greater Manchester’s plan for recovery from Covid

Supporting delivery of the Greater Manchester Strategy

Providing a framework to manage growth in a sustainable and inclusive way, avoid un-planned
development and development by appeal

Aligning the delivery of development with infrastructure proposals

Meeting the requirement for local authorities to have a local plan in place by December 2023.

Meeting the Duty to Co-operate in s33A Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
The last published version of the GMSF included two proposed allocations that fall within the SPD area. These are
Castleton Sidings and Trows Farm. Previous versions of the plan have very limited weight in planning terms. These
two sites are referenced within this Draft SPD for consultation but it should be made clear that in development plan
terms, any final decision to include these sites will be considered through the ongoing joint development process.

2.4

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)

When considering any type of development, relevant SPDs at the time of publication of this document include:
 The Oldham and Rochdale Urban Design Guide Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs);
 Affordable Housing SPD;
 Climate Change and Adaptation SPD;
 Provision of Recreational Open Space in New Housing SPD; and
 Biodiversity and Development SPD.
All SPDs are available to view on the Council’s website.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 19

6

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

2.5

Other relevant documents and initiative

The Council approved the GM 2040 Transport Strategy Update and Delivery Plan (2021-2026) and the supporting
Rochdale Borough Local Implementation Plan in late 2020. These propose the development and implementation of a
number of transport projects that will support the objectives of this masterplan. These include the Castleton to
Rochdale Town Centre Bee Network scheme, improving safety and providing improved sustainable travel
opportunities for pedestrians and cyclists. Phase 1 of the scheme runs along A664 Manchester Road from Castleton
Station to Sudden (junction with A58 Bolton Road) with Phase 2 continuing the scheme north along A58 Manchester
Road from Sudden junctions to Rochdale Town Centre.
Phase 1 of the Bee Network scheme will result in loss of some on-street parking in Castleton. This has in part
provided the impetus for a review of parking in Castleton to support future transport and development proposals,
and further opportunities to provide additional or improved car parking will be taken. Through consultation on the
masterplan, concerns were raised regarding the number of Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs) travelling through
Castleton Town Centre, many generated by local industry and businesses. A review of route options that lorries and
trucks use to access / egress the area seeks to minimise the need for them to use A664 Manchester Road in the
centre of the village and provide alternatives to accessing the major and Strategic Road Network to and from the
study area.
There are a number of proposals to enhance public transport that significantly improve services to / from Castleton
Railway Station... Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) are developing a Tram Train pathfinder project which
proposes the introduction of new local fixed rail metro services between Oldham via Rochdale and Castleton to
Heywood initially and eventually to Bury. The services will operate using rolling stock that can run on both the
Metrolink and the Heavy Rail Network. At the same time, Network Rail and Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM)
are working with the Council, East Lancashire Railway Company and adjacent landowners to progress the proposal to
extend the East Lancashire Heritage Railway from its current Heywood Terminus to Castleton. The proposal has
reached Governance for Railway Improvement Projects (GRIP) Stage 2 with a number of options identified to deliver
a new platform interchange with the national rail network at Castleton. Further studies are being planned to look at
improvements to bus services and infrastructure linking Castleton with Rochdale and Middleton town centres. More
details on these proposals are presented in the Transport and Accessibility section of this SPD.
There will be a range of local transport and accessibility measures to support development sites within the study
area. These are presented in the Transport and Accessibility section of this SPD and will be proportionate to the size
of the development proposal. These include local cycling and walking links, possible local highway and junction
improvements, provision of electric charging points etc.

2.6

How the SPD was prepared

Two companion documents have been prepared as supporting evidence to this SPD. These are:



Castleton Station Masterplan

Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) commissioned WSP and Broadway Malyan in May 2019 to prepare a masterplan for
the Castleton Station area and identify a vision and priorities in order for the aspirations of the Council to be realised.
The Masterplan was developed with full consultation with the Council, Greater Manchester Combined Authoirty,
TfGM, Network Rail, East Lancashire Railway Company and London and Continental Railways (LCR) to ensure there
was agreement on all aspects alongside in depth discussions and consultations with statutory consultees and

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 20

7

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

interested bodies. The document also outlined key delivery and implementations mechanism in order for the
aspirations to be realised.



Rochdale Rail Corridor Strategy

The document outlines a long term, 20+ year, ambitious strategy, to create over 7,000 new homes and 250,000
square metres of employment space along the Calder Valley rail corridor. The document provides a high level
masterplan, proposing major development around the borough’s five railway stations; Rochdale, Castleton, Smithy
Bridge, Littleborough and Mills Hill as well as to support plans for a new station at Slattocks and a tram – train
pathfinder scheme to connect Rochdale with Heywood via Castleton. The plan priorities include the creation of new
neighbourhoods on underused brownfield sites, which are close to local amenities and transport links.
The strategy is being delivered in collaboration with the newly formed Greater Manchester Station Alliance, a
partnership of Network Rail, Northern Rail, the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Transport for Greater
Manchester, regeneration specialists, London and Continental Railways (LCR).

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 21

8

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

3.

Context

The masterplan and SPD area is located around Castleton local centre and the railway station. The area covered by
this SPD is broadly contained between A58 Bolton Road to the north and to the M62 to the south, A627 (M) south to
M62 junction 20 to the east and the Green Belt boundary to the west XX (See Figure X). The site area runs with A664
Manchester Road and Queensway (A664) at the centre and encompasses the Rochdale Canal and the Calder Valley
Railway Line to the north east and south of the neighbourhood the circumference immediately around the station. It
comprises approximately 264 hectares of predominantly brownfield land and comprises of a mixture of existing land
uses, including the railways station itself and sidings, the communities of Castleton Moor and Sudden, a large
employment area including converted mills, residential developments and businesses, most of which are typical of a
local centre.
Castleton is a historic mill town which expanded as part of the Industrial Revolution. It’s historic past can be seen in
the area through the prominence of the Rochdale Canal and Arrow Mill which was key to its development. As with
many similar neighbourhoods of this nature, over time the area has experienced deprivation.
The masterplan area captures a variety of uses within its boundary with, residential to the west and south and
employment to the north and east. There are a significant number of Victorian terraces, some semi-detached houses
and larger properties around the Sudden area. It also includes a local centre and large employment area, which hosts
a selection of vital local employers. Castleton local centre was proposed as a district centre in the draft allocations
plan, therefore this further highlights the essential role that the current local centre plays in meeting the needs of
the local area and the importance of maintaining and strengthening the existing centre. This SPD will assist with
achieving those aims.
Within Castleton there are some prominent industrial sites such as Tetrosyl and Farrells; a variety of small
independent retail and non-residential offering on the main street, including some small businesses such as beauty
salons, hairdressers and takeaways and a Co-op convenience store. However, there is a significant number of
premises which are run down, derelict or vacant which negatively impacts the first impression of Castleton when
arriving at the train station.
There are also some local leisure offerings such as Castleton swimming pool, Go-Karting and some traditional local
pubs. The Carnegie Library was the People’s design award winner at the 2019 Rochdale Borough Design Awards due
to its extensive restoration and repair. The Library is mostly used as offices and as a space supporting the local
community.
There is potential to expand on Castleton’s convenient location to Rochdale and Manchester City Centre through its
accessible road and rail links. To support the objectives of this Masterplan, the Council will explore options to reroute HGV’s and commercial traffic away from the redefined Local centre to allow room for more accessible active
travel opportunities and improved public realm. Part of the catalyst for the change around the area is to improve
links to and from Castleton with employment, leisure and educational opportunities, making it a local hub and also
improving walking and cycling links. This will be achieved by extending and maximise the use of underutilised local
rail lines to / from Castleton including the evolution of the Tram-Train Pathfinder project initially from Oldham via
Rochdale to Heywood and Bury, and the extension of the East Lancashire (ELR) Heritage Line. These along with the
Bee Network project provide enhanced access and will be part of redeveloping existing sites and support Castleton’s
regeneration.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 22

9

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Castleton’s Canalside setting and proximity to the countryside contributes to tourism potential which in turn means
the town has many possibilities for future development and attracting new people to the area, including commuters
requiring accessible links and families requiring larger homes. This will in turn breathe a new vitality to the area and
make Castleton a desirable location to live.
The railway station area plays a key role in this by connecting residents to central Manchester in approximately 15
minutes, therefore making the area an ideal commuter location as well as enabling trips for leisure and education.
Almost 173,000 rail journeys were made from Castleton during 2019/2020 and with increasing demand from
population growth, the GM Stations Alliance will lobby for further investment in rail services and capacity as well as
facilities at the station. The redevelopment of Castleton will help to capitalise on its accessibility to neighbouring
towns, further connecting Rochdale, Heywood and Bury through the extension tram-train project. The aim is to make
Castleton a thriving and modern 21st century neighbourhood, attracting new residents, visitors and businesses whilst
restoring and renewing its Victorian past.
Linkages with adjoining areas
The wider area has a natural link with Castleton town centre and the surrounding communities. This is further
explored in the sections below.
Development Framework
The over-arching framework masterplan incorporates the strategic guiding principles that are outlined in this
document and provides a comprehensive strategy to guide development. It establishes development opportunities,
existing and proposed connections, existing local assets and functions, and delivers a co-ordinated plan setting out
the proposed direction and potential phasing of future development within the study area, the latter of which will be
linked to market interest and the availability of public and private sector funding. Figure X below sets out the
framework of the masterplan, with the following chapters setting out the detail for specific focus areas.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 23

10

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 1 – Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document Area Framework and Key

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 24

11

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

4.

Development Principles

The SPD establishes the principles and parameters to guide future development and infrastructure investment within
the Castleton area over a minimum of 20 years and beyond. This will enable the realisation of the overall vision for
the Castleton Station Area. The overarching principle of this SPD is the creation of thriving, vibrant, sustainable
communities in Castleton. In order to achieve this, the SPD will seek to efficiently use land, provide a better quality
and variety of housing by type and tenure, good and environmentally sensitive design, improvement to public open
space and public realm and access to employment and job opportunities, community facilities and local services.
In order to make Castleton a desirable and sustainable place to live and work, the SPD places strong emphasis on the
following:








Introduce new residential uses that provides for a mix of types and densities
Clearly define the existing local centre
Support the existing employment areas and provide opportunities for investment
Create a more integrated community both for existing and future residents
The removal/reduction in the number of HGVs through the town centre
Create more legible and public open space, including links to the Rochdale canal
Rationalisation of car parking provision to provide a balance between the needs for commuters, shoppers,
visitors/tourists linked to the ELR, and existing and future residents

These principles are discussed in further detail below.

4.1

Define a Local Centre

The principle here is to seek to condense the retail and high street commercial uses into a smaller defined area along
Manchester Road that is centred on the railway station and the Albion Street triangle. It is also envisaged that the
capacity of the local centre is expanded out from Manchester Road through the provision of new developments on
either side of the railway station.
The Draft Rochdale Allocations Plan produced in 2018 did include the redesignation of Castleton from a Local Centre
to a District Centre. The proposed redevelopments and regeneration of the centre set out in this SPD have the
potential to improve and enhance the existing Local Centre to support the redesignation as a District Centre that
better serves the wider area and the increased residential development.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 25

12

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 2 - Town Centre Defining Boundaries

The key elements of this principle are:


Concentrate the village centre around the Railway Station and Manchester Road/Albion Street Triangle;

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 26

13

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021








4.2

Improve the sense of arrival and gateway experience to Castleton town centre;
Improve the presence of the Railway station through integration with other uses;
Provide a clear sense of place and natural wayfinding;
Integrate/create space for community and civic uses;
Accommodate all modes of movement, improving the pedestrian environment and public realm; and
Celebrate the historic assests within Castleton.

An Integrated Community

The principle here is to seek to create a more integrated community both for existing and future residents. Castleton
does not provide for a clear thoroughfare with an amalgamation of poorly defined links.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 27

14

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 3 – Integration of Communities
The key elements of this principle are:




4.3

The provision of physical linkages for new communities to the established communities and the local
centre/railway station;
Promotion of a people first and age-friendly design incorporating slow modes to enable ease of interactions;
Promotion of a cohesive idetity through design

Restrict HGVs through the Local Centre

The aim of this principle is to seek to remove or significantly reduce the use of the section of Manchester Road that
passes through the existing/proposed town centre through the development of alternative routes. The
removal/reduction in the number of HGVs through the town centre supports the aims and objectives of this SPD. The
principle will assist in creating a safer environment for pedestrians and cyclists and assist in creating a more pleasant
environment within the local centre.
The key elements of this principle are:




The removal of HGV movement from Manchester Road through Castleton local centre;
The provision of signage, restrictions and physical design/highway geometry changes to encourage rerouting; and
The provision of new/adapted highways to facilitate re-routing

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 28

15

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

4.4

Create Public Open Space

The principle here is to mitigate for the loss of public open and green space due to existing planned and future
developments. It is crucial to re-establish legible, high quality open public spaces that are well connected and provide
a sense of wellbeing.

Figure 4 – Open Space Strategy

The key elements of this principle are:



4.5

Mitigate the loss of public open space/green space due to planned and future develpments; and
Provide a clearly legible network of existing and new green/public spaces that are well designed around
social interaction and wellbeing, making use of the opportunities of new residential development.

Rationalisation of Car Parking

The aim of this principle seeks to provide a balance between the needs for commuters, shoppers, visitors/tourists
linked to the ELR and Rochdale Canal, existing and future residents. At the same time, this principle aims to maximise
the attractiveness of walking and cycling, particularly in and to/from the local centre amongst local residents. The
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 29

16

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

key aim of the parking considerations is to better organise and serve existing demand, rather than to provide
additional capacity that attracts more vehicles, particularly rail commuters, which will be directed to and met from
increased park and ride capacity at Rochdale rail station.

Figure 5 – Car Parking Rationalisation Strategy

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 30

17

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

The key elements of this principle are:






4.6

Maintain existing levels of station parking during the working week and allow for ELR tourism parking at
other times;
Identify opportunities to provide additional car parking to meet the needs of the local centre;
Introduce and implement a parking management strategy;
Limit on-street parking in the local centre; and
Rationalise pick-up and drop-off at the station.

Provide a mix of densities and housing types

Increasing the density of housing in locations that have a high level of accessibility by sustainable modes of transport
is a key part of the strategy for Greater Manchester, as set out in the last published version of the GMSF. The policy
included in the GMSF set out appropriate densities reflecting the relative accessibility of the site by walking, cycling
and public transport.
This SPD promotes the emerging guidance on density of residential development in proximity to rail stations and
Metrolink stops. The utilisation of sustainable brownfield development and town centre living is key to the
achievement of efficient use of space and sustainable development.
The majority of the station area is within 400m of the Castleton railway station. As such, a minimum net residential
density of between 120 and 70 dwellings per hectare will be expected.

4.7

Community Facilities

In order to create a sustainable neighbourhood it is important that there is good access to a range of local facilities.
Although Castleton already benefits from a range of facilities it is important that opportunities are taken to improve
the existing facilities and make new provision where appropriate. In addition use of existing facilities can be
encouraged through the provision of safer and easier access and through improvements to the surrounding
environment.
It is essential that development is supported by an appropriate range of services and facilities. Given an objective
within the Castleton SPD is to provide additional housing, it is important that the community infrastructure is in place
to support the population. This includes community centres, places of worship, premises for cultural and social
activities, schools and educational establishments, nurseries, libraries and health facilities.
Any proposals for local community and health facilities, including those as part of mixed use developments, will have
to meet the criteria set out in the Local Plan. This seeks to ensure that the facility is easily accessible by a choice of
sustainable transport modes and does not have unacceptable impact on residential amenity or surrounding
highways.
In providing new facilities it is often advantageous to group such facilities together in order to minimise trips,
improve access and increase activity.
Therefore the development of ‘community hubs’ in appropriate locations within the masterplan area will be
supported.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 31

18

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Education
The SPD is in the Rochdale South-West Primary planning area for Primary capacity and within the Rochdale Township
planning area for Secondary Capacity.
In Primary schools in the area there are bulge places in St Edwards CE School and St.John’s in Thornham and school
extensions have been carried out to increase capacity at Sandbrook and Castleton Primary schools. The area has a
shortage of places in two year groups.
Land forming part of the former Carcraft site on Nixon Street is proposed for a new primary school of which would
result in circa 420 pupils. The provision of a new primary school within the Masterplan area will ensure there are
adequate school places to meet the population needs of the wider development proposed within the area.
The council will apply a threshold of 20 dwellings in assessing whether planning contributions will be required from
proposed housing developments for mainstream education contributions. Developments of more than 20 dwellings
will be required to pay planning obligations on all dwellings.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32

19

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

5.

Transport and Access

This section contains a summary of the main transport issues affecting the SPD area, particular, issues that will need
to be taken into account when considering the future development of the Rochdale Station area and revitalisation of
the Town Centre for new development.
The overall objective of the movement strategy for the SPD area is to enable pedestrians, people with impaired
mobility and cyclists to have better connectivity within and adjoining the surrounding area including Rochdale Town
Centre. Across the SPD area, pedestrian and cyclists priorities will be enhanced providing greater priority for these
users, and reduce the dominance motorised traffic currently has in the centre of Castleton. At present route choice is
reduced and pedestrians and cyclists channelled to crossing points that are less conveniently located requiring them
to divert to make their particular journey.
An inclusive and legible movement network should manifest itself in a well-defined hierarchy of streets, safe
pedestrian and cycle routes, and correct distribution of land uses. The general aims of the access and movement
strategy are to create an interconnected network of streets and public spaces, arrange and align routes for ease of
walking and cycling and create a strong connection with local amenities, public transport and neighbouring and
surrounded areas (especially the town centre).
Transit Orientated Communities
A Transit-Orientated Community (TOC) is a project that mixes residential and commercial opportunities with the
objective of optimising the use of land and maximising access to public transport. The goal is to achieve important
sustainability aspirations that have the potential to be a great catalyst for adopting new development strategies that
will make the Borough more liveable. A TOC approach adds commercial benefit through access to transport but
critically also aims to realise social value and provide a ‘plan led’ approach for local and transport authorities.
Central to the wider objectives and strategy for the station area, including the creation of a Castleton Station Square,
with the reorganisation of the vehicular movements and the removal of traffic from in front of the northern station
entrance.
The “Streets for All” methodology being adopted across Greater Manchester is aimed at delivering a balance
between modes within the street network. Walking and cycling are prioritised and encouraged, and the space
available to them is increased and public realm enhanced to provide a more comfortable and safer street
environment where residents, shoppers and visitors / tourists want to spend time. Conflict between modes will be
minimised at key locations throughout the SPD area.
Castleton to Rochdale Town Centre Bee Network Scheme
This “Streets for All “ approach is exemplified by the proposed Bee Network scheme which runs from Castleton
Railway Station north along A664 Manchester Road through the major junctions at Sudden along A58 Manchester
Road to Rochdale Town Centre. Phase 1 of the scheme which has already secured GM Mayor’s Walking and Cycle
Challenge funding runs along A664 Manchester Road from Castleton Railway Station and National Cycle Network
Route 66 (which runs along Rochdale Canal from Manchester City Centre to Sowerby Bridge) to the junction with A58
Bolton Road / Silk Street. The character of this section of the route changes with frontage properties and retail units
in the centre of Castleton with properties becoming larger semi-detached and detached houses set back from the
carriageway with verges and wider footways on the approach to major junctions at Sudden. There a significant
number of junctions off Manchester Road to access surrounding residential areas and currently on-street parking
along much of the route.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 33

20

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

The Castleton Bee Network scheme seeks to re-balance the route to be a more appealing commercial environment
promoting a street scene and environment that encourages walking and cycling and enhances public realm creating
surroundings that people can go about their daily activities and spend time. A focus for this will be in and around the
railway station including a “station square” which could provide a focus for commercial and retail activity. The
scheme will reallocate the existing space to provide high quality walking and cycle routes along Manchester Road.
These will incorporate enhanced bus stops and reduce carriageway space taking some of the current dominance of
the route away from motorised travel and give it to sustainable modes. Pedestrian / cycling crossings will be well
designed and installed at regular locations along the route minimising the need for pedestrians and cyclists to divert
from their desired routes to cross the road. Where possible loading bays will be rationalised into key locations along
the route with on-street parking also removed from Manchester Road to an off-street facility. This has been a
catalyst to review wider parking issues in Castleton with proposals presented below.
Narrowing the carriageway and giving more of the streets to people will mean that traffic will still be able to pass
along Manchester Road but with the aim of reducing traffic flow and speed. There are local concerns about the
number of large commercial vehicles running through the centre of Castleton to access the Major and Strategic Road
Network (SRN) which could, in many cases, be redirected onto other less intrusive routes. These routes have been
identified and to support delivery of the SPD objectives, and give greater priority to the needs of pedestrians and
cyclists, initiatives will take place to promote them with local industrial occupiers. However, it will not be possible to
eradicate HGV’s using Manchester Road completely as some will still require to use A664 Manchester Road to serve
local business and for local service access.
Phase 2 of the proposed Bee Network scheme is not in the SPD Area but continues north along A58 Manchester
Road from the Bolton Road / Silk Street junction through the major junction with Edinburgh Way and B6452 Roch
Valley Way to access Rochdale Town Centre
Parking Considerations
To accommodate the Bee Network scheme there is a need for car parking which seeks to replace the lost on-street
spaces and provide a balance between the needs of commuters; shoppers; visitors / tourist linked to the ELR; and,
existing and future residents, whilst still maximising the attractiveness of walking and cycling, particularly in and to /
from the local centre.
This includes exploring the provision of surface car parking to accommodate the current rail passenger demand
associated with Castleton station, often displaced to surrounding streets; to serve the local shops and businesses
that may be displaced by the Manchester Road cycle corridor scheme; and, the potential to provide some future
capacity for visitors to the ELR extension to Castleton.
A key aim of the parking considerations is to better organise and serve the existing demand, rather than to provide
additional capacity that attracts more vehicles, particularly rail commuters. The key elements are described below
and shown in Figure X below.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 34

21

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 6 - Parking Provision and Management
Key

1

2

3

Station Car Parking
 Provision of a surface car park on the triangular plot behind the residences on Smalley
Street to accommodate the existing commuter parking that takes place on Railway
Approach, Smalley Street and the station car park.
 Mixture of long and short-stay car parking to serve both commuters and shoppers /
visitors with on-street parking controlled / managed for residents only.
 This car park could be used for the ELR visitors during weekend ends special occasion and
can free up developable plot on the land currently occupied by the existing car park.
 Car park could provide a more organised solution for pick-up and drop-off, along with
formal taxi rank.
Manchester Road Off-Street Parking
 Provision of a new car parking facility to mitigate the loss of on-street parking on
Manchester Road due to the Bee Network Scheme
Station Pick-Up & Drop-Off
 Provision of a dedicated pick-up and drop-off facility to the west of Castleton station to
manage the informal practice that takes place in the existing car park (most of drop-offs in

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 35

22

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

4

the morning) and Railway Approach /Smalley Street (most pick-ups in the evenings). Such
a facility is proposed to be located on Railway Approach and along the frontage of the
proposed ‘triangle site’ car park on Smalley Street.
 Provision of a taxi pick-up facility that can accommodate approximately 3 to 5 vehicles,
which is based on our observations of the station. The facility is proposed to be located on
either Railway Approach or Smalley Street close to the station.
ELR / Town Centre Parking
 Provision of a small parking facility to serve the ELR.
Control of On-Street Parking
 Implementation of parking control / restrictions in the residential streets around the town
centre and railway station providing opportunity for public realm enhancements.

Walk and Cycle Connections
The development of a core network of pedestrian and cycling routes that connect the key land uses, including the
proposed residential sites, to the station, town centre, the canal and connect into the proposed Manchester Road
Bee Network Scheme.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 36

23

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 7 – Walking and Cycle Connections


Trows Farm
- Pedestrian and cycle route via Trows Lane and Leander Drive/Vicarage Road North and linking into the
Manchester Road Bee Network to travel north towards the town centre.
- Cycle route via the ginnel linking through to Leander Drive and onwards via route a).
- Pedestrian route using the link described in b) and then onwards along Albion Street, via the ginnel linking
Leander Drive with Albion Street / Sherwin Way.
- Pedestrian and cycle route via Hillcrest Road, Kirklee Road and Melville Street and then linking back into the
Albion Way route.
- Pedestrian and cycle route via Cown Top Lane, across the open space to Bow Street and onwards over the
canal and under the railway to Gipsy Lane.



Nixon Street
- Pedestrian and cycle route linking into the Manchester Road Bee Network via Nixon Street.
- Pedestrian and cycle route as a) then via Knoll Street and Keswick Street.
- Pedestrian and cycle route linking into the Manchester Road Bee Network via Keswick Street. Link onto
Keswick Street via former Mayfield Sports Centre playing fields and / or the small car park.



Royle Barn Road
- Pedestrian and cycling link connecting into directly into Manchester Road Bee Network.



Rochdale Canal pedestrian and cycle route.



Tetrosyl site
- Connect Royle Barn Road via the Railway Approach for pedestrians and cyclists.
- Linkages to the wider Bee Network to enable connectivity through to the Northern Gateway.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 37

24

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Public Transport Enhancement Opportunities
East Lancashire Railway Heritage Line Extension to Castleton
The East Lancashire Railway Company identified an aspiration to extend the heritage line from its current eastern
terminus at Heywood Station east to terminate at Castleton station providing the ELR with a direct connection with
the national rail network... In addition to providing a convenient connection to Network Rail’s Calder Valley Line at
Castleton Station and public rail services, it also offers easy access to Rochdale Canal, the National Cycle Network
Route 66 which links Manchester City Centre and Sowerby Bridge, both of which are located close to the station and
a 10 minute daytime frequency bus services which operates between Rochdale Town Centre and Manchester.
Tram-Train Pathfinder and “Restoring our Railways”
Heywood to Rochdale is one of the pathfinder routes TfGM are proposing to pilot “tram-train” operation in Greater
Manchester. This will provide addition public transport links for Castleton with Oldham, Rochdale and Heywood as
they will stop at Castleton Railway Station. The tram-train service will enable adapted Metrolink vehicles to run on
both heavy rail and Metrolink tracks. A Business Case that supports the feasibility of the proposal is expected to be
completed by 2025 at the latest, from which funding can be sought by the GMCA and Tram-Train implemented.
In September 2020 TfGM made a successful bid from the Department for Transport (DfT) Restoring Your Railways
Fund to explore the options and feasibility of extending public transport services between Oldham and Bury via
Rochdale and Castleton stations using the existing Metrolink and heavy rail lines. This could link to re-opened lines
and new passenger services between Bury and Bolton which are also being explored through a successful “Restoring
Your Railways” bid thereby providing a potential north Greater Manchester orbital route through Castleton. It is
paramount that any proposals that come forward protect the successful and increasingly popular East Lancashire
Railway Heritage services.
Bus Network
Castleton Station is served by the 17 bus service between Rochdale and Manchester City Centre via Middleton which
runs a 10 minute frequency services (6 buses an hour in each direction) Monday to Saturday. While this is a Quality
Bus Corridor which links with the Rail Network and potentially in the future Tram-Train the choice of destinations to /
from Castleton are limited.
Key links are required to both existing and proposed employment areas, particularly to the south of nearby
Heywood. The proposed Northern Gateway allocation is significant and its size and significance will require it to have
strong public transport links to neighbouring communities and employment markets. High quality or rapid Transit
bus services are being explored that could link Castleton to the employment and economic opportunities the
proposed Northern Gateway allocation could provide.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 38

25

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

6.

Focus Areas

Proposals for areas identified in this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) should take account of the
development, design and transport principles detailed in earlier sections, the overall vision, and the area specific
information set out below (see map below for all focus areas). These focus areas have been identified through their
different characteristics in order to provide an analysis of the issues and opportunities within the overall SPD.
The strategy is to create three distinct focus areas (numbered 1-3) that are integrated with each other and within the
existing communities. The three Focus Areas are shown in Figure X below and are:
1. Station Area South
2. Station Area North
3. Station Area East

Figure 8 – Focus Areas in SPD
Throughout each focus area the emphasis is to seek to:






Provide a more visible and accessible station.
Create high quality public realm and open spaces.
Create a defined centre with improved sense of arrival and a gateway experience.
Provide for connectivity and movement prioritised to improve the movement experience.
Provision of high-quality, high density residential led developments around the station.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 39

26

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021



Create a modern ‘High Street’ uses that support the existing and future residents.

The purpose of this section is to set out in more detail how we anticipate these areas to develop, and determine
what role and function they have in delivering the overall vision for the Station area. This includes identifying
appropriate future uses as well as the design and development considerations throughout this SPD.
Proposals for areas identified in this (SPD) should take account of the development, design and transport principles
detailed in earlier sections, the overall vision, and the area specific information set out below (see map below for all
focus areas). These focus areas have been identified through their different characteristics in order to provide an
analysis of the issues and opportunities within the overall SPD.
The focus areas are not rigidly defined for development and do not imply separate developments are sought or
appropriate for these areas. Instead, development within the whole SPD area should be undertaken in a coordinated manner paying regard to all the guidance in this SPD, in order to deliver a well-planned and designed,
coherent, interconnected and integrated development that delivers the regeneration of the wider Station Area.
The strategy is to create three distinct character areas that are integrated with each other and with the existing
communities.

6.1

Focus Area– Station Area North and South

The area encompasses the railway station and the areas to the north and south. The area will create development of
which follows the following proposals/principles:









Condense retail uses to Albion Street Triangle with enhanced pedestrian links to the station;
Redevelop the former sidings for residential use;
Redevelop the existing, underutilised industrial uses for new residential;
Redevelop cleared/underused sites for residential uses
Provision of shared surface/highway improvements to the Manchester Road/Albion Street Triangle
Improve the public realms by incorporating boundary/frontage thresholds.
Support the delivery of tram – train services running through Castleton station between Rochdale and
to/from Heywood
The safeguarding of land for the option to provide a platform for the East Lancashire Railway, either through
the delivery of a platform at Castleton station or a new platform on land south of Manchester Road bridge

Within this character area, there are two areas of which will provide for new residential led developments to the
north and south of Manchester Road. These are Station Area South and Station Area North and are described further
in the following sections.

6.2

Focus Area 1: Station Area South

This focus area encompasses the area that is located immediately to the south of Castleton railway station.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 40

27

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 9 – Station South Focus Area
The Station area is part of the Defined Urban Area and is the pivotal point of the regeneration of Castleton. This
section underpins the development and growth for the area. This area will assist and support the evolution of
Castleton as a thriving community. The area and approach around the station is key to this SPD and the overall
regeneration of the Station and wider area. Departing via the Maltings Lane exit at Castleton Station, the Blue Pitt
Inn is a striking local interest building and a prominent landmark. The Rochdale Canal is a Designated Site of
Ecological and Geological importance and is an important biodiversity area; however there is more that can be done
to improve its recreational appeal more locally and to neighbouring areas.
Part of the site next to Manchester Road is in the conservation area. The Rochdale Canal also provides an attractive
setting at the exit with the bridge on Manchester Road, and there is opportunity to expand on this key feature with
improvements to the highway and visual amenity. The Canal also has listed lock tow paths and is parallel to a
Greenspace Corridor which is to be redeveloped as residential area. Albion Street Triangle will be utilised as a key
retail and pedestrian route for the existing and planned residential areas to the east.
The key development principles of this area are:






Provision of new medium/high density residential development between the Rochdale Canal and Railway
line. The option to achieve a comprehensive form of development with the adjoining Trub site should be
explored.
Provision of new pedestrian and cycle connections through the proposed new residential area linking the
local centre and station to the Trub Farm site
Provision of new high/medium density residential development on the former Corus / Tata Steel railway
sidings.
Accommodation of the option to construct platform for the East Lancashire Railway (ELR) with the provision
of pedestrian link under the road bridge through to the existing railway station.
Dedication of land and provision of a small car park to serve the ELR.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 41

28

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

It is envisaged that a mix of land uses would be appropriate within this area including:




Public realm improvements incorporating strong boundary frontage thresholds;
Transport link improvements with potential for pedestrian and cycle connections with Trub Farm site; and
Low and high density, high quality residential development.

Key aspects
The existing key landmarks and buildings should be enhanced through new development or area improvements.
There is opportunity to enhance the Rochdale Canal setting.
The design of new development around the station area should demonstrate how it has taken account of the
guidance within the Urban Design Guide and its understanding of form, context, hierarchy, scale and proportion
along with the new Station Square centre and the existing urban form.
Parking is to serve the residents, but where possible the opportunity to provide new additional off street parking for
the local shops and businesses that will be displaced by the Manchester Road cycle route scheme should be
explored. Retail uses are to be condensed to the Albion Street Triangle with enhanced pedestrian links to the Station.
Improved shared surface and highway improvements to the Manchester Road and Albion Street Triangle will be
made increase permeability and walkability throughout the Castleton neighbourhood and surrounding areas as well
as add value to the proposed new residential and commercial sites around the station. Parking provision will be
important as part of the redevelopment. A mix of land uses would be encouraged within this setting to reflect its
dynamic potential.

6.3

Focus Area 1: Station Area North

The focus area is immediately adjacent to the station and is located within a conservation area. This includes the
Maltings Lane area which is mostly an employment zone, which includes the canalside next to the station. Maltings
Lane leads onto the canalside and runs parallel to the station. Queensway supports the local economy through
commercial business, industry and warehousing and leads onto the M62 motorway. The prominent landmark from
the Industrial Revolution era is Arrow Mill, which is a Grade II listed building housing various businesses.
Further along Queensway there are some groups of terrace houses, including some terrace residential properties
close to Manchester Road.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 42

29

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Figure 10 – Station Area North Focus Area

The key development principles of this area are:







Encourage the diversification of uses of the existing mill buildings along Queensway, including the Grade II
Listed Arrow Vale Mill to residential with the integration of employment uses.
Provide medium/high density residential development on the land off Maltings Lane
Create a medium/high density residential development with potential for new commercial, social and
community uses on either side of the railway station
New station entrance building fronting Manchester Road providing pedestrian access onto platforms,
including for the needs of disabled users
Provide an organised pick-up/drop-off and taxi facility on Railway Approach and Smalley Street.
Safeguard an option for a future ELR platform to be provided at Castleton station

Longer-term aspiration of the industrial site include:




Provide residential buildings on the land between the Rochdale Canal and railway line.
Support high and medium density residential with a strong focus on a linear route through the site that
provides a direct link to Castleton station and develops public realm opportunities.
Support medium-density residential on the existing industrial uses opposite of Royle Barn Road, opposite
Tetrosyl.

It is envisaged that a mix of land uses would be appropriate within this area including:

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 43

30

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021







A new station ticket office building to Manchester Road and improved facilities
An accessible platform to accommodate passenger facilities and step free access to the platforms.
Ground floor spaces that can accommodate a mixture of retail, social and community uses.
A new limited car park to accommodate the current commuter parking demand as well as provide additional
off street car parking to support local centre businesses.
High density, high quality redevelopment providing a multifunction of uses, including residential and
commercial.

Key aspects
Proposals will seek to improve the facilities of the station area creating an enhanced station experience. The area will
support good quality, high density residential development to create a sustainable neighbourhood, increase the
housing mix and further support existing employment uses. There will be a focus to minimise the impact that some
commercial units have on the environmental, visual quality and amenity of the area and the SPD shall seek to overall
improve the appearance of the setting in a more integrated manner.
Key to this redevelopment is its connection to the adjoining areas. The creation of a permeable set of routes should
be prioritised alongside the Canalside, roads and footpaths which aims to improve active travel and transport links to
local destinations. Routes should be accessible and improve the safety for all users including appropriate street
lighting and clear routes to the main high street.
The design of new development around the station should demonstrate how it has taken account of the guidance
within the Urban Design Guide and its understanding of form, context, hierarchy, scale and proportion along with the
new Station Square centre and the existing urban form.
There is opportunity to promote and enhance the conservation area through the SPD. The existing key landmarks
and buildings should be enhanced through new development or area improvements. The use of quality materials
should be appropriate to the setting and should deliver – sensitively designed mixed use developments; which
should include, well-proportioned buildings with high quality materials, reflecting the conservation area and the
character and history of the area.
In any new development, consideration should be given to the impact of climate change and be zero carbon in line
with the Core Strategy and national policy.
Any canalside development should seek to create an attractive waterfront environment in a complementary way.
Any canalside development should conserve and enhance any natural habitats, and incorporate opportunities to
enhance the biodiversity of the area. Any risk of flood impact should be taken into consideration and mitigated with
appropriate mitigation measures.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 44

31

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

6.4

Focus Area 3: Station Area East

The area adjacent to the station area is mostly residential with a significant proportion of terrace houses with some
streets maintaining their traditional cobbled streets. Further towards Linden Road there are some larger properties
such as detached and bungalow. The residential part of the area is a mixture of older terraced housing and some
areas of more modern garden house suburb type style, predominantly residential in character and comprises of
older Victorian terrace.
Some of the key sites include Linden Mill which is a commercial building. The Blue Pitt Mill is a Victorian converted
mill, also in mixed commercial uses which is a local heritage building. The site area will bring together residential and
mix use possibilities to create a more integrated neighbourhood.

Figure 11 – Station Arear East Focus Area
The key development principles of this area are:
 A new public space ‘town square’ achieved through the calming of traffic and through the enhancement of
the public realm.
 Improved street scape and improved visual amenity.
 To promote longer term opportunities for high density residential re-use of vacant or under-utilised
employment space of which is deemed appropriate.
It is envisaged that a mix of land uses would be appropriate within this area including:
 High density, quality redevelopment of existing buildings to provide flexible multifunction spaces.
 Provision of higher density residential above commercial uses.
 Public realm improvements incorporating strong boundary frontage thresholds.
rochdale.gov.uk

Page 45

32

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Key aspects
In any new development the Council are aspiring to achieve a high quality design, sustainable development
outcomes and enhance the public realm. New housing should be of quality design and provide a good mix of
dwellings. Proposals will be expected to achieve high sustainability standards, and incorporate innovative designs.
Any new residential development should reflect these standards for existing residents and for people who may wish
to move into the area. Places should deliver attractive features and quality outdoor spaces. Routes should be legible
to form a cohesive route between areas.
Employment led mixed use development should also incorporate residential and community uses.
Any new development should seek to mitigate against climate change impacts. The design of new development
around should demonstrate how it has taken account of the guidance within the Urban Design Guide and its
understanding of form, context, hierarchy, scale and proportion along with the new Station Square centre and the
existing urban form.
Public spaces should be well designed and relate to the buildings around them as well as promote safe walking and
cycling routes to and from the station and surrounding Local Centre.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 46

33

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

7. Delivery and Implementation
Introduction
The need for a robust and coherent delivery strategy has been a core principle running throughout the
Masterplanning process which underpins this SPD. This has included but is not limited to: a realistic and sound
understanding of market aspirations and potential for change and investment, integrated feasibility and viability
analysis which seeks to maximise public and private sector funding streams, and the need for land assembly to
deliver the identified regeneration opportunity.
Comprehensive Development
This SPD supports and seeks a comprehensively planned and delivered mixed-use redevelopment in the Castleton
Station Area. The development should be residential-led, enhancing the range and quality of the residential offer of
the area. A range of uses including a significant number of new residential development, offices, commercial
employment, limited retail uses, leisure and cultural facilities.
In order to deliver the major step change necessary to achieve the Vision, Aim and Objectives set out in the
beginning of this SPD it is considered that, at a minimum, a comprehensive co-ordinated development needs to be
delivered for all the area covered by the Character/Focus areas.
Market Demand Considerations
The Council’s latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment (Draft, 2015) supports a need for the increased delivery of
family houses sized 2-bedrooms and above to meet emerging need. In addition there is a recognised need to deliver
a housing product within the SPD area that meets a variety of local needs in terms of unit size and tenure as well as
exploit the connectivity of Castleton with Manchester City Centre and the wider city region. There is also an
identified need for a specialist older persons housing.
Soft market testing undertaken with a number of national and regional regeneration house builders and contractors
has supported the view that there is a strong and continued interest in investing within the SPD area.
The Council commissioned Savills to produce a market development brief. This document tested the marketability of
the requirements contained within this SPD. This document can be utilised as a material consideration.
Partnership Working
It is prudent that the partnership working between the developer, Council and community, be embedded in the
delivery of a comprehensive development.
Delivery Partnership
The experience and knowledge of an experienced delivery partner could also be pivotal in achieving the SPDs
strategic and high-quality design aims. However, the Council is however keen to work with all landowners and a
variety of public and private sector investors to deliver the objectives of the SPD.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 47

34

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Delivery Approach
Rochdale Council working to produce a realistic delivery approach for the SPD area. Where it is identified to be
necessary the Council is willing to use its statutory powers (including Compulsory Purchase Orders) to facilitate the
holistic and comprehensive delivery of development and investment across the whole area.
The SPD seeks the comprehensive development and regeneration of the area captured within its boundary. Working
alongside its partners, including but not limited to the Greater Manchester Station Alliance, East Lancashire Railway
Company, the Canal and River Trust and land owners, it is intended that the group will work to de-risk the
opportunity through land assembly, rail clearance and progression of a strategic outline planning application for the
whole area. Post the outline consent the delivery strategy for North & South will emerge in agreement with all
parties and could involve a phasing of development across the opportunities and varying delivery partners.
Any development proposals promoted outside of this structure by individual landowners or interested parties will be
required to demonstrate that they facilitate and contribute to the delivery of the wider regeneration objectives set
out in this SPD and the Masterplan, and do not in any way prejudice its delivery.
Infrastructure and S106 Contributions
The Council will seek S106 contributions where these are necessary to make individual proposals acceptable in
planning terms.
Applicants should be aware of the ambitions to deliver the necessary infrastructure and that mechanisms to ring
fence Section 106 monies may be required.
Delivery of affordable housing as part of residential developments is an established policy requirement across
Rochdale Borough. Policy C4 of the Adopted Rochdale Core Strategy (2016) requires an affordable housing
contribution of 7.5% of the development sales value of the overall scheme, with a preference for on-site delivery of
an affordable product to meet local need. The policy allows for exceptional circumstances where off-site
contributions will be accepted.
Notwithstanding identified local need for affordable housing provision across Rochdale, this SPD recognises the need
to diversify housing supply within the Castleton Station area. It is recognised that the delivery of market housing
within this area is required to deliver this diversification and to ensure the sustainability of retained affordable
housing in the area – with only partial clearance of the existing estates proposed.
The SPD requires a clear and robust strategy around the strategic delivery of affordable housing, including an
intermediate product, which can and should be delivered through future planning applications. This should include
consideration of retained and improved affordable housing supply, the role for affordable supply as part of new
developments to contribute to the wider implementation of the masterplan (including recognition of the need to rehouse residents from redevelopment areas), and/or the contribution that off-site delivery could make to delivering
the overall ambitions of the masterplan.
The SPD also required a comprehensive strategy to provide investment in Castleton sustainable transport facilities,
which can and should be delivered through future planning applications. This should include consideration of walking
and cycling infrastructure to connect new housing developments with the station and the Castleton centre, the
Castleton to Rochdale town centre cycle corridor scheme and the wider Bee Network of walking and cycle routes
across the Borough.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 48

35

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Furthermore, consideration should also be given to the improvement of station facilities such as a new station
entrance, passenger waiting facilities and high quality public realm. This could be achieved through pooling and the
ring fencing of necessary contributions as well as bids for external grant funding.

Planning Application Requirements
This SPD will be a material consideration in any future planning application relating to any site within its boundary;
accordingly, any planning applications for development within the area will need to be supported by sufficient
evidence and information to demonstrate they embed appropriate responses to the requirements set out within this
SPD. This includes the need for justification for and evidence supporting any deviations from the requirements set
out within the SPD.
The Council has a series of checklists summarising validation requirements associated with different types of
applications, available at http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/planning-and-building/apply-for-planningpermission/planning-permission---home/application-forms-and-guidance. These checklists should be adhered to by
all applications to demonstrate that development is appropriate in planning terms.

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 49

36

Castleton Station Supplementary Planning Document
Draft July 2021

Rochdale Borough
Council
Strategic Planning Team
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale OL16 1YH

rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924252

strategic.planning@roch
dale.gov.uk

rochdale.gov.uk

Page 50

37

DRAFT CASTLETON STATION AREA
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT
(SPD)

STATEMENT OF CONSULTATION

July 2021

Page 51

0

CONTENTS

Page
1. Introduction

2

2. Participation and consultation

2

3. Location where documents can be viewed

5

4. Advice and Assistance

5

Page 52

1

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The Castleton Station Area Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been
produced by the Council to guide redevelopment of this area. In order to ensure
that appropriate public consultation takes place, Supplementary Planning
Documents (SPD) are required to be accompanied by a statement setting out how
the Local Planning Authority will comply with the Council’s Statement of
Community Involvement (SCI).

1.2

This Consultation Statement has been prepared in line with Regulation 12 (a) of
the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Order 2012, which
states that, before a council adopts a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD),
it must produce a statement setting out:
i. The persons the local planning authority consulted when preparing the
supplementary document;
ii. A summary of the main issues raised by those persons;
iii. How those issues have been addressed in the supplementary document.

1.3

This statement sets out how the public and other stakeholders will be consulted
upon the SPD. Following the consultation period, this statement will be expanded
to summarise the comments received during the consultation period, including
details of how the issues raised have been dealt with in working towards a final
SPD for adoption.

1.4

This SPD has been produced in accordance with the Town and Country Planning
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

2.

PARTICIPATION AND CONSULTATION
Early Consultation

2.1

The regeneration and improvement to Castleton represents a strategic priority for
the Council to contribute to the wider housing strategy for new and improved
housing offer in the area, exploit its connectivity to the strategic road and rail
network to regenerate under-utilised land and buildings and support further
planned investment in transport infrastructure. Working with partners through the
GM Stations Alliance, Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) are working towards a
regeneration plan for the Castleton area focused around the Railway Station,
which will guide and unlock proposals for tram – train services operating between
Oldham and Bury via Heywood, the extension of the East Lancashire Railway
(ELR) Heritage Line, the implementation of a Cycle Corridor/Bee Network on
Manchester Road, new car parking along with several residential and commercial
development sites. The Castleton Masterplan forms one of the Council’s station
masterplans within its published Rail Corridor Regeneration Strategy. The
Council is seeking to promote transit led integrated development and place
making around existing stations with the aim of unlocking the dormant potential of
Castleton station through dynamic urban regeneration and the creation of a
Transport-Orientated Community (TOC). The approach aims to add commercial
benefit through access to transport but critically also aims to realise social value,
environmental sustainability and provide a ‘place led’ approach.

Page 53

2

2.2

Castleton Station’s redevelopment and regeneration potential is an important
vision which offers residents and businesses an opportunity to develop a
sustainable community with a vibrant mixture of living, working and recreational
opportunities.

2.3

This Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been prepared to establish an
appropriate framework to guide and deliver development by setting out the
development, design and accessibility principles, and the identification of focus
areas where more specific guidance is necessary.

2.4

The Council worked with the GM Stations Alliance, a newly established
partnership between Rochdale Council, GM Combined Authority, Network Rail,
LCR Property, Transport for Greater Manchester and the East Lancashire
Railway to prepare a masterplan for the existing stations within the Borough.
Preparation of the Castleton Station Masterplan has been widely consulted on
with residents and businesses’ within the area.

2.5

Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) commissioned WSP and Broadway Malyan in
2019 to prepare a masterplan for the Castleton Station area and identify a vision
and priorities in order for the aspirations of the Council to be realised.

2.6

The Masterplan was developed in consultation with Members and the GM Stations
Alliance collaboration with the Council to ensure there was agreement on all
elements of the masterplan, from the vision through to use framework. The process
was supported by in depth discussions and consultations with statutory consultees
and other interested bodies. The document also outlined key delivery and
implementation mechanisms in order for the vision aspirations to be realised.

2.7

The Masterplan was developed from 2019 to 2020. The scope of the project was
divided into the three distinct stages, which were as follows:
 Stage 1 – Data Collection and Scoping
 Stage 2 – Option Testing
 Stage 3 - Station Area Masterplan

2.8

At each stage, workshops were held, which helped to inform the key aims and
objectives of each neighbourhood. There have been a number of workshops with
key landowners and stakeholders since this date. Further to this, the Council has
engaged with local businesses and communities to ascertain their invaluable
perspective.

Stage 1 – Data Collection and Scoping
2.9

This stage is a preliminary assessment of the potential for Castleton Train station
to be developed as Transport Orientated Community hub. This work was used to
facilitate discussions with RMBC, TFGM, NR and other interested parties. This
exercise lead into more detailed Station Area Masterplan work that will be used to
validate, test and evolve any early observations.

2.10

A workshop was held in Rochdale Town Hall (25th June 2019) with key
stakeholders to begin the collaborative process of developing a framework for a
shared vision for the study area. The workshop sought to utilise the extensive
local knowledge of the attendees to identify constraints and opportunities; begin in

Page 54

3

setting objective goals for the project; and, inform the prioritisation of the
opportunities.
2.11

The workshop began with a presentation from the study team setting out the
information contained in Section 2 of this report, followed by two group exercises,
namely:
 SWOT analysis.
 Setting of objectives.

2.12

Each session focused upon the three key themes of:
 Place
 Movement
 Land Use

2.13

The second session of the workshop asked the attendees their opinions and
thoughts around the type of objectives, split into the key themes. Table X sets out
a summary the discussion during the session with those in bold being identified as
being the priority for the group.

2.14

Agreement was made on a new set of objectives and their relative
importance/priority. The results of workshop 1 were taken into account to develop
and refine options in advance of workshop 2.

Stage 2 – Option Testing
2.15

On the 04th September 2019 the design team undertook a workshop with key
stakeholders with invitees representing Rochdale Council; Transport for Greater
Manchester; East Lancashire Railway, Rochdale Development Agency, ; LCR
Property; Greater Manchester Combined Authority; and, One Partnership.

2.16

The purpose of the workshop was for the stakeholders present to provide
feedback and input into the:
 Development Principles
 Draft Framework Masterplan
 Emerging options for each of the specific intervention areas.

2.17

The feedback and input that was received by the design team during the
workshop was support and agreement for:
 The design principles around which the Framework Masterplan and options
were being developed;
 To discuss the integration of the proposed ELR extension into the masterplan.

2.18

Input received from the attendees of the workshop included:
 Support for the design principles
 Concentration of the town centre around station/Albion Street Triangle
 Need to accommodate parking to serve the town centre to off-set spaces due
to the Bee Network route and any restrictions in residential streets
 Pedestrian and cycle links to the new housing schemes need to be provided
 Maximise the connection with the canal through the town centre
 Remove HGVs from Manchester Road through the town centre

Page 55

4



2.19

Movement network to facilitate and encourage new residents to visit the town
centre on foot.

As part pf Stage 2, the design team made a presentation of the outcomes of the
workshop and masterplan options to Ward Members and the Cabinet Member
and Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Business, Skills & Employment on 29th
September 2019. The masterplan options received positive feedback and support
from the attendees and welcomed the proposals that the team are looking to
develop across the study area. The principles were endorsed by Lead Members
and senior Council Officers and our engagement with these key representatives
will continue as the masterplan develops

Stage 3 – Station Area Masterplan
2.20

The third stage of the project involved collating all the necessary feedback raised
at the previous two workshops to formulate a draft Masterplan. A third workshop
was conducted on Wednesday 4th September 2019 to present the aims and
objectives of the preferred options Masterplan and to continue the collaborative
process with key stakeholders.

3.

PUBLIC CONSULTATION TO BE UNDERTAKEN

3.1

The Council intends to carry out a public consultation and seek views on the content
of the SPD consultation draft for at least four weeks subject to approval.

3.2

The consultation will comprise of the following methods:
 Notification letters and emails to organisations and individuals registered on the
Councils’ consultation database. This will include general consultees;
 The consultation will be publicised on the Council’s website:
www.rochdale.gov.uk/consultations; and

3.3

Respondents are invited to make comments:
Online; or
By submitting responses using a comments form on the website which can be
returned by post or emailed; or
Emailing comments to LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk




3.4

Elected Members will also been consulted on the SPD preparation process, including
a presentation to the Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 6 July 2021 and the Rochdale South Township Committee on
29 July 2021.

3.5

In addition to the statutory planning consultees the Council hold a database
containing contact details of groups and individuals interested in the development of
our plans, this is used to keep those registered, informed of progress and future
consultations. People on this database will be consulted.

3.6

On completion of the consultation exercise, the SPD will be revised as required to
reflect responses.

Page 56

5

3.7

In addition to the statutory planning consultees the Council hold a database
containing contact details of groups and individuals interested in the development of
our plans, this is used to keep those registered, informed of progress and future
consultations. People on this database will be consulted.

3.8

On completion of the consultation exercise, the SPD will be revised as required to
reflect responses.

4.

LOCATIONS WHERE DOCUMENTS CAN BE VIEWED

4.1

During this public consultation, copies of the draft SPD and other associated
consultation documents listed below will be available to view on the Council’s website
at www.rochdale.gov.uk/consultations.

4.2

Due to the current Coronavirus pandemic, hard copies of the document are
unfortunately not available to view at public libraries.

4.3

The associated documents that are available to view as well as the SPD itself are:



5.

SPD Consultation Statement
Equalities Impact Assessment

ADVICE AND ASSISTANCE

For further information relating to this document please contact:
Planning Service
Floor 3
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
Rochdale
OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 924252

By email: LDF.consultation@rochdale.gov.uk
Details of opening times are available on the Council website or by telephoning 0300 303
887.

Page 57

6

Page 58

7

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Draft Castleton Station
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

July 2021

Page 59

ROCHDALE METROPOLITAN BOROUGH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK
An Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) is a measure that public authorities often carry out prior
to implementing a policy, with a view to ascertaining its potential impact on equality. Such
assessments are not required by law, although are a way of facilitating and evidencing compliance
with the Public Sector Equality Duty.
This Equalities Impact Assessment has been prepared as a supporting document for the Castleton
Station Area Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).
The SPD has been produced to support and guide appropriate development, change, investment
and improvements in the future of the area over the next 10 to 15 years.

Equalities Impact Assessment and Target Groups
The purpose of this Equality Impact Assessment is to ensure the proposed SPD for the Rochdale
Station Area integrates the best outcome for those affected by spatial development and mitigates
any negative impacts, in respect of the protected characteristics defined by the Equality Act 2010.
These are:










Age;
Disability; (Disability Discrimination Act 2005, GLA Disability Equality Scheme 2005,
Special Educational Needs and Disability Act 2001)
Gender reassignment;
Marriage and civil partnership;
Pregnancy and maternity;
Race; (Race Relations Act 1976, Amendment 2000, Amendment Regulations 2003)
Religion or belief;
Sex; (Sex Discrimination Act 1975); and
Sexual orientation.

This EqIA is an opportunity to consider whether a policy, strategy or approach, affects all groups in
the same way or whether there are is a significant positive, negative or neutral impact on particular
groups before a policy is formally introduced.
On the whole, EqIAs should make sure that equality is placed at the centre of policy development,
highlighting the likely impact of the policy on the target groups and to take action to improve the
policies where appropriate as a result or to demonstrate the potential benefits.

Page 60

Appendix 1 Equality Impact Proforma
Department

Strategic Planning

Section
Economy
Date of
Assessment

Person responsible
for the assessment
24/05/21

Kirsty Nicholls

Page 61

Name of the
Is this a new
Castleton Station Area
Expanding on
Policy to be
or existing
Supplementary Planning
Core Strategy
assessed
policy
Document (SPD)
policies C/2.
1. Describe the aims, objectives
The draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has been prepared to guide planning
and purpose of the policy
decisions relating to the Castleton Station area. The purpose of this Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) is to provide a development strategy for the Castleton Station area. It
outlines potential development opportunities within the area, establishing the principles and
parameters to guide future development for the next 10-15 years in the surrounding area.
Specifically looking at:
 Introduce new residential uses that provides for a mix of types and densities
 Clearly define the existing town centre
 Create a more integrated community both for existing and future residents
 The removal/reduction in the number of HGVs through the town centre
 Create more legible and public open space, including links to the Rochdale canal
 Rationalisation of car parking provision to provide a balance between the needs for
commuters, shoppers, visitors/tourists linked to the ELR, and existing and future
residents

2. Are there any associated
objectives of the policy, please
explain

The SPD supports the main objectives set out within the Masterplan prepared on behalf of
Rochdale Borough Council and includes a programme of significant consultation with the local
community and local partners. It identified a range of interventions required to improve the
physical appearance of the area including quality and design of the public spaces, better
access and connectivity within the area and to the Town Centre and surround areas, and a
safer and mixed neighbourhood offering a range of community and residential offerings to
facilitate wider regeneration and contribute positively to housing market option and
improvement.

3. Who is intended to benefit from
the policy and in what way

Private Individuals, Community and Interest Groups, Stakeholders, Land Owners, Developers,
Councillors, Rochdale Council Officers.

4. What outcomes are wanted
from this policy?

It seeks an efficient and effective land use policy which ensures that new development adds to
and supports the regeneration of Castleston Station area. The area mainly comprises of mainly
commercial buildings but does also include some pockets of other land use and buildings.
Better quality information submitted with planning applications to assist the development control
processes and the implementation of the Core Strategy policy.
If funding or resources were withdrawn.
Unforeseen/unavoidable circumstances.
Complexity of topic.
7. Who implements the policy and
Development Management.
who is responsible for the policy?
Strategic Planning.

Page 62

5. What factors/forces could
contribute/detract from the
outcomes?
6. Who are
Rochdale Council,
the main
Private Individuals,
stakeholders Community and
in relation to Interest Groups,
the policy
Stakeholders, Land
Owners,
Developers.
8. Are there concerns that the policy
could have a differential impact on
racial groups?

Y

N

The SPD objectives generally responds well with all racial groups in the defined area in
respect of access to public open spaces, new and improved housing, community facilities,
accessibility etc. All groups in this area will benefit from this and help achieve a high
quality development.

9. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due to gender?
10. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact due disability?

Y

N

It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group.

Y

N

11. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential

Y

N

This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality
environment for all users, a suitable mix of tenures, sizes and types developed in order to
meet local needs over the long term and create a sustainable community. In addition, it
seeks to improve and modernise the quality of some overall residential environment.
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group.
It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group.

impact on people due to sexual
orientation?
12. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on people due to their age?
13. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on people due to their
religious belief?

Y

N

Y

N

This SPD seeks better design and integration of all developments to ensure a high quality
environment for all users. It seeks to offer a wider variety of residential and commercial
development.
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group.
This SPD seeks appropriate levels of community facilities and services to support new
development in order to serve the area as a whole. Where community facilities include
places of worship.
Therefore, it is anticipated that this SPD will have a positive benefit upon this group.

Page 63

14. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on people due to them being
in a marriage or civil partnership?
15. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on people who are pregnant
or on maternity?
16. Are there concerns that the
policy could have a differential
impact on people due to their
gender reassignment?

Y

N

It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group.

Y

N

It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group.

Y

N

It is not anticipated that this SPD is likely to have a negative impact upon this group.

17. Could the differential impact identified in 8-16
amount to there being the potential for adverse
impact in this policy
18. Can this adverse impact be justified on the
grounds of promoting equality of opportunity for
one group? Or any other reason
19. Should the policy proceed to a partial
YES
impact assessment

YES

NO

YES

NO

NO

20. If Yes, is there
enough evidence to
proceed to a full EIA

Please explain for each equality
heading (question 8-16) on a
separate piece of paper
NO
YES

Signed (completing officer) Kirsty Nicholls

Signed (Lead Officer) Mark Robinson

Page 64

Agenda Item 8
Report to Township

Date of Meeting

3rd August 2021

Portfolio

Cabinet Member for
Highways and Housing

Report Author

Darren McCrohan

Public/Private Document

Public

Objection to Proposed Traffic Order
Waiting Restrictions, Back Drake Street, Rochdale
Executive Summary
1.1 Local representation identified concern with regard to obstructive footway and
carriageway parking along both sides of Back Drake Street. This can
compromise operational width for general traffic, restricting access for Goods
Vehicles, and limiting sightlines for both drivers and pedestrians along Back
Drake Street and its junction with Caton Street.
1.2 Rochdale South Township subsequently approved
development, and promotion of an appropriate scheme.

the

investigation,

1.3 The approved scheme was advertised between 14 th April and 5th May 2021 and
one objection was received. This report considers the objection received.
Recommendation
2.1 Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation Order,
‘Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various
Streets) (Rochdale Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No. 184) Order 2021’
be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in light of the
objection received (provided as Appendix C to this report).
2.2 It is the recommendation of Highways that the original scheme should be
implemented as advertised to appropriately protect local access and enhance
operational safety at this location for both pedestrians and drivers.
Reason for Recommendation
Copy of Statement of Reasons:
3.1 “Local representation and site observations have identified the need to introduce
an appropriate Prohibition of Waiting restriction on kerbside parking along the
section of Back Drake Street from Moore Street up to and including its junction
with Caton Street.

Page 65

3.2 The purpose of this proposal is to mitigate the effects of indiscriminate parking
known to occur along both sides of this route, which can impede vehicular access
and cause obstruction of the footway.
3.3 Back Drake Street is a narrow route providing local access to the rear of
commercial and residential premises. At only 4.5 to 4.7m wide, intended ‘No
Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions along both sides of Back Drake Street are
considered necessary for protecting access, providing appropriate footway for
pedestrians, and for maximising operational width for two-way traffic movement.
3.4 Additionally, to mitigate visibility compromised currently by kerbside and footway
parking, it is proposed to extend the intended restrictions to include approaches
from Caton Street to its junction with Back Drake Street.
3.5 The proposals will extend to the existing prohibition of waiting and loading
restrictions already operational along Moore Street.
3.6 It is considered that these proposals will not be detrimental to local occupiers
given the established provision of rear courtyard areas for those premises along
the eastern side of the route (fronting Drake Street) and the existing availability
of on-street parking on St. Chad’s Close for those residential properties backing
on to the western side of Back Drake Street.
3.7 There have been no recorded injury collisions along the subject route during the
most recent 36-months. The proposals nevertheless are considered beneficial
in terms of maintaining safe access at this location for all users of the highway.
3.8 The route is not Strategic Highway.
3.9 Reduced hours of 'No Waiting' would not offer a sufficiently viable solution in
maintaining access and in supporting the operational safety for users of the route.
3.10 Promoting reduced restrictions along just one side of Back Drake Street would
compromise the scheme given width limitations of the route.”
3.11 A drawing of the advertised scheme is included as Appendix A to this report.
Key Points for Consideration
4.1 One objection was received during the 21-day consultation period.
included verbatim as Appendix C to this report.

This is

4.2 The following provides Highways interpretation and response on each of the key
objection points received, supporting the recommendation made herein.
Issues Raised

Highways Response

a. There is not enough parking in
the area.

The proposal responds to local concerns over
compromised access and safety associated with a narrow
carriageway (only 4.7m at its narrowest point). Highways
consider there to be adequate on-street parking available
elsewhere in the locality along wider, more appropriate
streets to the north and south of Drake Street.

Page 66

b. The area is a business area and
in order to ensure that there are
no difficulties (including financial
burden) on local businesses,
parking should not be restricted.

The needs of local businesses have been considered in
development of the proposals.
Many of the affected businesses along Drake Street have
rear courtyard parking accessible from Back Drake Street
and site observations have shown there to be capacity
available with variable utilisation.
The scheme will support local businesses who have
reported difficulty with Goods Vehicles accessing rear
courtyards and having to offload on the highway as a result
of obstructive parking.
The local area is considered highly accessible by all modes
of public and private transport and as noted previously,
there is alternative on-street car parking available
elsewhere in the locality.

c.

The proposed scheme responds directly to local concerns
raised over compromised access and perceived road
safety issues for drivers and pedestrians arising from
indiscriminate and obstructive double-parking along Back
Drake Street. The proposal has considered and sought to
balance access and safety with the needs of local
businesses, for whom many already have rear courtyard
parking as well as accessibility on-street parking space
available elsewhere in the locality.

The area is far enough from the
town centre to not require
restrictions.

d. It would be unsafe to walk to a
car park in winter when it gets
dark earlier.

As noted above, the scheme restricts neither access to
existing rear courtyard parking nor to on-street car parking
readily available in the locality.

4.3 Alternatives in terms of reduced hours of restriction and/or a lesser scheme with
the prohibition implemented just along one-side of Back Drake Street, have been
considered but discounted on the basis of seeking to protect access and road
safety for all users of Back Drake Street. The existence and availability of on
and off-street car parking elsewhere in the locality has supported this decision.
4.4 Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions as proposed then the
noted issues of indiscriminate obstructive parking as reported to Township will
not be appropriately addressed.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.1 The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is estimated to be £4,000 and
would be met by the Rochdale South Township Capital Fund.
5.2 Should the Committee wish to make further changes to the advertised Traffic
Regulation Order it may, subject to advice from Legal, require re-advertising
which will incur additional costs that will need to be met by the Township.
Risk and Policy Implications
6.1 The scheme is promoted and recommended as part of the Council’s statutory
responsibility to ensure that its highways operates safely and efficiently for all
road users.

Page 67

Consultation
7.1 Consultation, required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure)
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996, has taken place.
7.2 Statutory consultation was undertaken in January 2021 with emergency services
and Transport for Greater Manchester. The proposals have the support of these
bodies.
7.3 Notices of Intention were posted on-site and published in the local newspaper on
14th April 2021 (included as Appendix B to this report).
7.4 The consultation objection period ran until 5th May 2021.
Background Papers
8.1 Not applicable.

For Further Information Contact:

Darren McCrohan
01706 924518
darren.mccrohan@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 68

APPENDIX A – Scheme Plan

Page 69

APPENDIX B – Notice of Intention

Page 70

APPENDIX C – Objection(s) Received
Objection 1 – as received
From: 1234567 89
Sent: 28 April 2021 17:08
To: Traffic Orders <traffic.orders@rochdale.gov.uk>
Subject: TRO Ref No H60/1334
Dear Asif
In respect of the above reference, I object to the proposal on the basis of the following:





There is not enough parking in the area.
The area is a business area and in order to ensure that there are no difficulties on
local businesses, parking should not be restricted.
By enforcing a restriction, you will increase a financial burden during difficult times.
The area is far enough from the town centre to not require restrictions.
It would be unsafe for me to walk to a car park in winter when it gets dark earlier.

I look forward to hearing from you.
Kind regards
1234567890

Page 71

Agenda Item 9
Report to Rochdale South Township Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

3rd August 2021
Cabinet Member for
Corporate and Finance
Peter Thompson
Public

Rochdale South Township Delegation and Appointments 2021/2022

Executive Summary
1.

To request that the Rochdale South Township Committee confirm its
delegated decision making arrangements and make appointments to the
Township Sub-Committees, including, where appropriate, the Chairs, Vice
Chairs and substitute members; the appointment of “lead” opposition
spokespersons; and the appointment to other bodies.
Recommendation

2.

That the Sub-Committee structure of the Rochdale South Township
Committee comprising the Rochdale South Township Action and Resources
Delegated Sub-Committee and the terms of reference, as described at
appendix 1 of the report be approved.
That Members are appointed to the Rochdale South Township Action and
Resources Sub-Committee (including the Chair, Vice Chair and the lead
opposition spokesperson); as detailed at Appendix 2 to this report.
That the relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following Area
Forums:a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
Castleton Area Forum
Kingsway Area Forum
Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum

That Members be appointed to the following Township Bodies:a.
Older Person’s Champion
b.
Younger Person’s Champion
c.
Rochdale Township Planning Panel
d.
Road Safety Group

Page 72

Reason for Recommendation
3.

The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution, which
states that: appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working
Parties, Partnership Arrangements and Local Outside Bodies shall be made
at the first meeting of the appropriate Township Committee in the new
Municipal Year’.
The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any
matter detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is
essential to take a decision.
The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township. The Committee
has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of other bodies as
detailed in Appendix 2
Key Points for Consideration

4.

Rochdale South Township Action & Resources Delegated Sub-Committee
will exercise formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as the Committee for
dealing with ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for
making grant approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township
Funds.

4.1

Area Forums – The Township Committee appoints appropriate Ward
Members to the area forums.
Alternatives Considered
The Committee could choose not to appoint Sub-Committees and undertake
all delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact
on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of
business. The Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative
Sub-Committee arrangements.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Page 73

Risk and Policy Implications
6.

The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation
arrangements to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with
relevant and statutory procedural requirements. Not to appoint to the SubCommittee and the working groups might limit member involvement in key
initiatives for the Township.
Consultation

7.

Not required.

Background Papers
8.

Place of Inspection

There are no background papers

For Further Information Contact:

Not applicable

Peter Thompson, Tel: 01706 924715,
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 74

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP ACTION AND RESOURCES
DELEGATED SUB-COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE
1.

To receive and consider the minutes arising from meetings of the Ward/Area
Forums and other Township Priority Groups and related bodies, referring matters
of concern to the Township Committee.

2.

To exercise the following delegated powers as detailed in Part 3 of the Council’s
Constitution – Responsibility for Functions
A.
B.

C.

3.

Determination of objections/representations in respect of the Appointment
of Hackney Carriage Stands
Urgent designation of a Conservation Area unless deemed to be strategic
in nature by the relevant Director and where such items are not
Development Plan Documents.
To deal with urgent matters within the remit of the Rochdale South
Township Committee

To exercise under delegated powers the following powers of the Rochdale South
Township Committee (as contained within Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution –
Responsibility for Functions )
A.
Confirmation of Traffic Regulation Orders which are the subject of
objection by persons directly affected by the proposal (i.e. in occupation of
premises in the immediate vicinity of the proposal) other than in
circumstances where a Township Committee chooses not to confirm an
Order deemed strategic in nature by the Director of Neighbourhoods in
which case the matter shall be referred to the Cabinet
B.
Closures or diversions of highways, including footpaths and bridleways,
deemed to be contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods
C.
Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984,
S.9)
D.
Traffic regulation for special areas, for example, Country Park ( Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.22)
E.
Pedestrian crossings, for example, pelican and zebra crossings (Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.23)
F.
Street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.29)
G.
Byelaws for street playgrounds (Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, S.31)
H.
Installation of road humps which are the subject of significant objections
by people directly affected (as determined by the Director of
Neighbourhoods)
I.
Making Up of Private Streets – Part IX of Highways Act 1980
(i)
The private street works code

Page 75

J.
K.
L.
M.
N.
O.
P.

(ii)
General
(iii)
The advance payment code
Power to determine applications to make Orders under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 deemed
contentious by the Director of Neighbourhoods
To keep definitive map and statement under review
Power to make Footpath Creation Orders under the Highways Act 1980
S.26
Reclassification of roads used as public paths under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981
Power to designate public footpaths as cycle tracks under the Cycle
Tracks Act 1984
Consideration of any other matter that may be referred to the Township
relating to the regulation of highways, footpaths, bridleways etc.

4.

To have full responsibility for all aspects of devolution (including any related
delegated budgets and Rochdale South Township Funds) and the
implementation and development of the Township Plan.

5.

To receive reports from ‘devolved’ and ‘influenced’ Services detailing their
response to the Township priorities in the Township Plan and the development of
their respective Service Plans to reflect those priorities.

6.

To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township Funds),
to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding
are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made.

7.

To consider and comment on quarterly monitoring reports on devolved funding
with a subsequent report to Rochdale Township Committee.

8.

To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds,
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made.

Page 76

Appendix 2
Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2021/2022 Municipal Year. The following
appointments were made for 2020/2021:Rochdale South Township Action and Resources Sub-Committee
Councillor Zaman (Chair), Councillor Wraighte (Vice Chair)
Councillors Shakil Ahmed, Hornby, Meredith, Nickson, Rashid, Angela Smith, Sullivan
(Lead opposition Spokesperson) and Zaheer.
Substitute members: Councillors Daalat Ali, Brett, Farnell Howard and Sheerin
Area Forum
The area Forums included in Rochdale South Township Committee are:
a. Balderstone and Kirkholt Community Meeting
b. Bamford and Oakenrod Area Forum
c. Brimrod, Marland and Sudden Area Forum
d. Castleton Area forum
e. Kingsway Area Forum
f. Milkstone and Deeplish Area Forum
Other appointments
1. Older Person’s Champion
2. Younger Person’s champion
3. Rochdale Township Planning Panel (one member from each of the
Township’s five Wards should be nominated – but not a member of the
Planning and Licensing Committee)
4. Road Safety Group – 2 members of the Committee are invited to serve on the
Road Safety Group

Page 77

Agenda Item 10
Agenda Item
Report to Rochdale South Township Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

3 August 2021
Communities & Co-operation
Sharron Worrall
Public

Rochdale South Township Funds Review
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2020/21 and
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2021/22.

1.2

Members are asked to approve Rochdale South Township Funds allocation
to funding streams, terms and conditions, and agree delegation
arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
South Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2020/21
(Appendix 1 and 2).

2.2

Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2020/21
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for funded projects (Appendix
4).

2.3

Members approve the allocation of Rochdale South Township Funds to
funding streams in 2021/22 (Appendix 5).

2.4

Members approve the terms and conditions for Rochdale South Township
revenue and capital funds for 2021/22 (Appendix 6).

2.5

Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Rochdale South
Township Funds 2021/22 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

2.6

Members agree any uncommitted/unspent funds be reallocated to a central
revenue or capital funding stream as appropriate before the end of January
2021 to enable Members to spend/commit all Rochdale South Township
Funds during 2021/22 financial year.

Page 78

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Rochdale South Township Fund is delegated to the
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2

Rochdale South Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3

To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale South
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale South
Township revenue and capital funds 2020/21 (Appendix 1 and 2). The final
outturn for financial year 2020/21 as agreed with Accountancy will be
reported to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2

A review of Rochdale South Township revenue and capital funds has been
undertaken (Appendix 3). Findings have influenced funding streams
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration
procedures for grant applications for 2021/22.

4.3

Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Rochdale
South Township Fund. Grants awarded and projects funded have made a
difference to the local community with improvements to local facilities,
increased social interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.
All successful applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that
they complete a project evaluation form. Members are asked to note the
summaries of evaluation information received on projects which have been
funded as detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4

Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township
Funds 2020/21 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of
Township Funds to funding streams in 2021/22 (Appendix 5).

4.5

Terms and conditions for Rochdale South Township revenue and capital
funds have been updated. Members are asked to approve the terms and
conditions for 2021/22 (Appendix 6).

4.6

Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Rochdale
South Township Funds 2021/22 as follows:
a)

Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair,
Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson of Rochdale South Township
Delegated Sub Committee, may make decisions on the allocation of
funds to all projects of £5,000 and under. Any disputes concerning
allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale South Township
Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

Page 79

b)
c)

4.7

Rochdale Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.
Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale
South Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all Members are
aware of projects that have been approved.

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Rochdale South Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2020/21 in
Appendix 1 and 2. Recommendations for allocation of Rochdale South
Township Funds to funding streams for financial year 2021/22 in Appendix
5.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Rochdale South Township Funds to ensure best use of available
resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in
line with the identified priorities.

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet
those priorities.

7.
7.1

Consultation
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular
monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding
requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be
consulted on as appropriate with Members, residents and other
stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 80

APPENDIX 1

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE

£

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Total budget for 2020/21
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

22,947
107,953
51,916
182,816
99,685
83,129
182,814
-

Page 81

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

Funds

Members Fund
Ward Fund
Projects Fund
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2020/21)
Total

REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
54.53%

% Actual +
Committed
100.00%

182,816
-

Budget
b/f 2019/20
£
22,947
22,947

-

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
30,000
30,000
47,953
107,953

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
£
51,916
51,916

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£
30,000
30,000
99,869
22,947
182,816

Committed
£
14,318
9,248
38,260
21,304
83,129

Actuals
£
6,432
5,290
4,474
1,138
17,333

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
9,250
15,462
(1,505)
58,640
1,505
(1,000)
82,352

Total
£
30,000
29,999
99,869
22,946
182,814

Budget
remaining
2020/21
£
-

APPENDIX 2

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2020/21

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL

3,603
103,280
106,883
106,883
106,883
-

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

106,883
-

Page 82

Budget b/f 2019/20
Base Budget 2020/21
Income/Adjustments 2020/21
Total budget for 2020/21
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2020/21

Funds

Capital Fund
Total

CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
100.00%

£

Budget
b/f 2019/20
£
3,603
3,603

-

Base
Budget
2020/21
£
103,280
103,280

Income/
Adjustments
2020/21
£
-

Revised
Budget
2020/21
£
106,883
106,883

% Actual +
Committed
100.00%

Committed
£
-

Actuals
£
6,240
6,240

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
100,643
100,643

Total
£
106,883
106,883

Budget
remaining
2020/21
£
-

APPENDIX 3
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2020/21
REVENUE FUNDS
Fund
Budget
Review
Projects Fund
£47,953 The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local
Base Budget community and environment across Rochdale South Township.

Page 83

Adjustment Funds were used to support 20 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 9 community projects and 11 highways/
£51,916 environmental projects. The variety of projects funded included production of four short films for the BAME
communities on mental health and nutrition topics that will offer a bilingual resource and reduce the risk of Covid-19
associated health outcomes; Fit, Feed and Read 2020 to improve the physical, mental health and wellbeing of local
children with activities during the summer holidays; provision of full training kit and a waterproof jacket for each
Pennine Junior FC (Under 12) team member to ensure children from all backgrounds have equal access to team kit;
contribution towards the provision of Christmas trees for Rochdale South Township; repairs to the footway area at the
side of Castleton War Memorial; a new cricket pitch at St Joseph's Field, Kingsway; traffic calming in the Church Stile
area with new gateway 20mph zone signage and new speed humps plus repeater 20mph signs; installation of missing
sections of fence and metal chicane at Rochdale Canal/Crawford Street to prevent motorcycle access to the canal tow
path; angling equipment and organised events to offer fun, friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of
all abilities to improve the health and wellbeing of the local community; installation of CCTV within Balderstone Park to
deter anti-social behaviour and provide a safer environment; introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on
Half Acre Drive to Linnet Hill, Rochdale as double parking on this narrow carriageway is causing problems with
gaining access to the estate; installation of security mesh fencing at seven points of entry to the football pitches at
Burton Park to address anti-social behaviour and make the pitches safe for players and club members; restoration of
the British Legion Grave for soldiers who died in the First World War located in Rochdale Cemetery to improve the
condition and visual appearance and safeguard the future of this memorial in both its social and historical context as
the community’s chosen method of remembrance and important source of information for future generations;
additional lighting point on a footpath between Palatine Street and Adrian Terrace, Rochdale to enhance the lighting in
the area and improve public safety; Bury Road and Sandy Lane junction investigation into the provision of pedestrian
facilities to improve walking links and pedestrian safety; deployable CCTV system for location in fly tipping hot spots
to provide a high profile deterrent, quality footage to help identify and prosecute offenders, opportunities for media
footage to be used to advertise incidents and locate witnesses and ultimately reduce fly tipping and littering.
At year end unallocated balances from other revenue funding streams were transferred into this budget to provide
Members with the opportunity to identify and fund projects that have not been progressed due to lack of funds in those
individual funding streams.

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £48,529 (subject to final outturn
agreed with Accountancy).
1

REVENUE FUNDS
Fund
Budget
Review
Ward Fund
£30,000 Each Rochdale South Township Ward received £6,000 to provide a budget for dealing with issues that necessitated a
Base Budget quick response and addressed local needs with Ward Councillors and the community identifying projects.

Page 84

This fund was used to support 17 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 7 community projects and 10 highways/
environmental projects. The variety of projects funded included planting of a Christmas tree (6m high Norway Spruce)
in front of the newly redeveloped The Strand on Kirkholt to provide a permanent living Christmas tree rather than a
felled Christmas tree each year for a cost effective and environmentally friendly option; installation of a kissing gate at
the Great Gates Road entrance to Balderstone Park to address the problem of unauthorised vehicles accessing this
green space; new metal closed top litter bin on Bamford Green to encourage the community to dispose of their litter
responsibly and keep the area clean; a heavy duty pop up gazebo and folding picnic tables with attached seating to
enable Girlguiding Rochdale East and West members to participate and enjoy camping, picnics, outdoor nature study
and weekly meetings once the Covid restrictions ease; provision of four portable goal frames for Bridge Junior
Football Club to support local young girls in developing their skills to participate in leagues across the borough; tree
planting in Springfield Park to disrupt the flight path of Canada geese to and from the mere and access to the adjacent
mown plots by the mere as landing/take off and grazing areas with the aim of controlling the numbers of geese and
reduce the pollution in the water from geese faeces; replacement of missing knee rail fencing from the boundary of
the Slattocks car park adjacent to the Hopwood Arms to prevent vehicles from driving over the footway to exit the car
park; provision of low energy multi-coloured LED lights for the Castleton Christmas tree as the existing lights were
beyond economical repair and the new lights enhanced the festive display in the village centre and reduced energy
consumption; contribution towards the construction of five off road parking bays in the existing embankment on Percy
Street, Rochdale; installation of pedestrian guardrail at the side of the bus stop at the entrance to Kingsway High
School, off Turf Hill Road, Rochdale to ensure the safety of children exiting the school and other pedestrians as the
guardrail creates a physical barrier between the footway and the carriageway; two new illuminated festive features on
street lighting columns in Castleton Village to extend and enhance the existing display.

Township Officers recommend the Ward Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £30,000 with each Ward allocated
£6,000.

2

REVENUE FUNDS
Fund
Budget
Review
Members Fund
£30,000 Each Rochdale South Township Councillor received £2,000 to allocate to projects within their Ward for the benefit of
Base Budget the local community and environment.

Page 85

Funds were used to support 19 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 12 community projects and 7
highways/environmental projects. The variety of projects funded included a replacement water boiler to ensure
Rochdalians AFC players and club supporters have access to hot refreshments and light weight petrol strimmers to
maintain the pitches; equipment for Kirkholt Bowling Club to maintain the grounds consisting of a water removal
machine to efficiently remove surface water from the bowling green to ensure fixtures can continue despite adverse
weather conditions and a leaf blower to clear leaves from the footpaths and shelters around the club’s green to
prevent them becoming slipping hazards; supply of two standard metal closed top litter bins for installation at Rhodes
Ravine, Kirkholt on Morningside Road and Rhodes Crescent to encourage the community to dispose of their litter
responsibly and keep the area clean; contribution towards a Summer House to be constructed in The Willows
Dementia Hub’s gardens with disabled access and an electricity supply to facilitate reintroducing the connection
between families and their loved ones whilst reducing the possibility of infection to residents in the communal lounges,
etc; a portable amplifier/PA system, xylophone and scores to enable Rochdale Light Orchestra to enhance the
ensemble sound and widen the range of music performed; replacement of the existing stock of chairs used by 9th
Heywood (St Michael’s) Scout Group with a new bundled package of 84 lightweight folding chairs and a storage
trolley so they can be easily folded and moved safely for indoor and outdoor events/activities; provision of football kits
and equipment for St Clement's Football Club Saint’s Fifth Team to encourage local young people to participate in a
sport that promotes health and wellbeing, improves their social skills, builds their confidence and provides a positive
activity to occupy their time; improvements to the play provision for older children in Chesham Park Play Area,
Castleton with the renewal of the safety surfacing under the cone climber and installation of a new basket swing;
pruning and removal of self-seeded trees on Council land near Innings Way, Castleton to address the concerns of
local residents as the height and condition of some of the trees were a danger to their properties; contribution towards
the construction of five off road parking bays in the existing embankment on Percy Street, Rochdale; a laptop to be
utilised by the Multicultural Resource Centre to provide health information to their service users in community
languages and host Zoom meetings to maintain contact and engage with other community organisations, agencies
and services users.

Township Officers recommend the Members Fund for Rochdale South Township in 2021/22 receives a base budget of £30,000 for each Rochdale South
Township Councillor to be allocated £2,000.

3

Page 86

CAPITAL FUNDS
Fund
Budget
Review
Capital Fund
£103,280 The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and
Base Budget realise the Township priorities in 2020/21. Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the
community.
£3,603
b/f 2019/20 Funds were used to support 12 projects during 2020/21 consisting of 2 community projects and 10 highways/
environmental projects. The variety of projects funded included interactive speed display sign with solar panel on
Norden Road, Bamford to replace existing non-operational sign; safety measures to Broad Lane/Turf Hill Road mini
roundabout to address loss of control incidents relating to vehicles approaching the roundabout; construction of five
off road parking bays in the existing embankment on Percy Street, Rochdale; installation of a new salt bin on
Crompton Avenue, Rochdale as this location becomes hazardous during wintry conditions; removal of wooden
fencing on Robinson Street, Rochdale and replace with knee rail to stop the area being used for drug dealing, drug
use and associated anti-social behavior; supply and installation of a bespoke ornate fence along Oldham Road
frontage to Balderstone Park from the main gate to the first house at the junction with Broad Lane, Rochdale to deter
youths in the park from throwing objects at passing cars; refurbishment of the Mayfield Sports Centre to provide safe
access to the club house and the grounds consisting of the extension of the decking area, installation of a ramp and
enhanced external lighting; traffic calming measures on Marlet Avenue consisting of road humps and signage to
reduce the average speed of vehicles in line with the speed limit; replacement of the grass verge with tarmac on
Sandfield Road, Rochdale from its junction with Royds Street to outside 15 Sandfield Road to improve the visual
appearance of the footway and facilitate suitable parking provision; introduction of No Waiting At Any Time restrictions
along the full length of Crawford Street to prevent indiscriminate parking around the turning circle and both sides of
the road as it is a detriment to the safe movement of HGVs in/out of industrial/commercial businesses in the area.
Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund for Rochdale South Township receives a base budget of £103,831 in 2021/22 (subject to final outturn
agreed with Accountancy).

4

APPENDIX 4

”Link4Life are hoping to extend the
programme throughout the year and build
on the fantastic work and relationships
that have been built during the local
response to Covid-19”
Scott Hardy
Programme Manager
Link4Life

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Link4Life and Rochdale Council Library Services
Fit, Feed and Read
Projects Fund
£5,000

Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered three days per week at Sandbrook Primary
School from 27 July to 19 August 2020 to vulnerable children and families most in need of
the provision identified by Social Workers, Education Welfare Service and Early Help Team.
Also children who had been struggling with their mental health who had attended the
Link4life #Thrive sessions were also invited to register. In addition, Link4Life and Township
staff redeployed to the Rochdale Council’s Emergency Response Hubs during the
coronavirus pandemic referred families on to the programme who had contacted the hub for
support.
Link4Life worked with Rochdale Council’s Public Health Team to ensure the safety of all
participants and staff involved conducted risk assessments for running the provision during
the pandemic. Schools were identified as the safest venues for delivery of the programme
and Sandbrook Primary School was selected as they offered excellent facilities.
Activities were delivered each day from 9am to 3pm and this extended provision required
extra healthy snacks to be made available in the morning and throughout the day.
Link4Life’s Healthy Lifestyle Team ensured every child received an enjoyable lunch and
snacks and families were given the opportunity to take food home at the end of each
session.

Page 87

Rochdale Library Service provided Link4Life staff with resources and ideas on how they
could engage the children in the Summer Reading Challenge 2020. Silly Squad was the
theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2020 about a fun house run by a lovable squad
of madcap animals that each enjoy a different sort of funny writing to encourage children to
explore new genres and broaden their reading habits. Children were invited to sign up at an
easy to use website, create their own profile before setting their own reading goal and write a
review for each comic, joke book, e-book, etc they read to unlock activities and incentives
such as online badges, games and videos. New content was provided every week
throughout the summer with social media used to recommend eAudiobooks and free emagazines to download, selections of non-fiction to pick up from the Request & Collect
library branches and drawalongs, readings and tips on making your own comics. Link4Life
coaches delivered interactive games and activities to bring stories and characters to life.
Rochdale Library Service also arranged for every child who attended the Link4Life sessions
to receive free books as part of a primary care package from the Book Trust. Every child
who completed the challenge received a certificate and medal.

Link4Life Fit, Read and Feed Sessions
Total number of participant attendances (register sessions)
Unique participants (register sessions)
Participant contact hours deliver (via register sessions)
Session hours deliver (register and head count)

Page 88

181
24
1086
72

“This five year project has been the
complete transformation of the club to a
modern high standard facility that going
forward will provide excellent sporting and
leisure for the whole community”
Andy Parton
Treasurer
Rochdale Sports Club

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdale Sports Club
Rochdale Sports Club Refurbishment
Capital Fund
£8,475

Rochdale Sports Club (originally Rochdale Cricket Lacrosse and Squash Club) moved to the
site of the former Redbrook School in 2016 as part of its five year development plan to
expand the sports offer to the local community. The club has vibrant senior and junior
sections, strongly supported by volunteers and it benefits from a multicultural membership.
Two secondary and nine primary schools are located within walking distance of the club and
they encourage participation in sports on a regular basis from an early age.
Refurbishment of the Rochdale Sports Club’s grounds and buildings has involved upgrading
the upstairs function room and toilets, fire/security alarms and CCTV, cricket nets/lacrosse
training area, double changing rooms and showers, floors/walls of two squash courts and
provision of a 120m security fencing to the site entrance. A grant of £50,000 was awarded to
Rochdale Sports Club from Sports England and £56,775 from Viridor Environmental Credits
in addition to the grant received from Rochdale North Township to enable the club to
undertake the improvements and realised their aspirations to create a premier venue for
sports provision.

Page 89

Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

British Legion Memorial Renovation
Projects Fund
£1,033.92

Restoration of the British Legion Grave for soldiers who died between 1914 and 1918 in the
First World War located in Rochdale Cemetery involved commissioning a local experienced
mason to clean the memorial, check/reset loose kerbing and repaint lettering. The works
have improved the condition and visual appearance of the British Legion Grave and
safeguards the future of this memorial in both its social and historical context as the
community’s chosen method of remembrance and important source of information for future
generations.

Page 90

Page 91

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management
St Joseph’s Field Kingsway Cricket Pitch Replacement
Projects Fund
£7,840

Playing fields formerly belonging to St Joseph’s School provide an important green space for
recreation. An artificial cricket pitch on the site was no longer fit for purpose with significant
damage.
The new cricket pitch installed on St Joseph’s Field is constructed with a base layer to
provide an even bounce, spin and pace, a batting shock pad and polypropylene turfed
carpet. Repair and maintenance costs for modern synthetic surfaces for artificial cricket
pitches are non-existent compared to turf cricket pitches and it has been installed
with a seven year guarantee. The ECB standard pitch with its weather
resilient surface offers a more consistent performance than grass
so suitable for players of all ages and abilities.
The popular sport of cricket can once again be played by the
local community on St Joseph’s Field offering participants
the opportunity to enjoy a physical social team sport
in a safe outdoor environment.

Page 92

“…a positive focal point at a time when
people are perhaps not feeling at their
best and put in place a more sustainable
alternative to using cut trees with all the
associated additional costs, waste and
unnecessary use of resources”
Paul Dockerty
Environmental & Cyclical Manager
Rochdale Boroughwide Housing

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing
The Strand Christmas tree
Ward Fund
£2,213

Rochdale Boroughwide Housing in November 2020 organised the planting of a six metre high
Picea Abies (Norway Spruce Christmas tree) in front of the newly redeveloped The Strand on
Kirkholt. This area is the commercial hub and heart of the neighbourhood and it is envisaged
that the Christmas tree would provide an attractive focal point for local residents and visitors.
Historically a felled Christmas tree has been sited on The Strand and a switch on event held
for the local community. A permanent living Christmas tree rather than a felled Christmas tree
each year ensures a cost effective and environmentally friendly option plus it provides an
attractive environmental feature throughout the year. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing will
undertake the maintenance of the tree and each year liaise with Rochdale Council to arrange
the dressing of the tree for the festive period. Groundwork Oldham Rochdale (Rochdale
Boroughwide Housing’s Green Team Partnership and local charitable environmental and
employment charity) planted the Christmas tree with the works involving their apprentices who
are studying for NVQ2 in landscaping. Five apprentices are recruited from the local area and
employed on two year placements to carry out environmental improvements works whilst
gaining a qualification. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing is the sole funder of this Partnership
and to date, the arrangement has delivered in excess of 300 environmental projects across the
borough.
The Christmas tree provided a welcome sight during the
festive period for the local community with the lights ‘switch
on’ streamed via social media channels being shared and
receiving a high level of positive feedback.

Page 93

“Members of our club and local people
will see the result of our work at the
ground and appreciate the well
maintained facilities”
Mark Wilson
Secretary
Rochdalians AFC

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdalians AFC
Ground development/facility maintenance stage 1
Members Fund
£985.98

Rochdalians AFC maintain and develop the facilities at Springhill Playing Fields under
licence from Rochdale Borough Council that include the pitches, changing facilities and
kitchen/tuck shop. Opportunities to participate in amateur football are provided to local
youths and adults with teams for U6 to U9, U17 and adults (two Saturday and one Sunday
team). Grassroots football is important to the local community and contributes to the quality
life of those who play the game as it improves their health, social engagement and
confidence. The club promotes a safer neighbourhood by encouraging young people to
participate in a sport that enhances their social skills, builds their
self-esteem, health and wellbeing whilst providing a positive activity
to occupy their time.
Equipment acquired to improve the club’s facilities was a replacement
40 litre water boiler for the kitchen to ensure players and club
supporters have access to hot refreshments and also three light
weight petrol strimmers to maintain the pitch areas that are
inaccessible with the tractor mower, particularly on the slopes and
around the pitch handrail.

Page 94

“We have had to cancel matches due to
water on the surface of the bowling green.
The water removal machine will enable us to
fulfil the fixtures and the leaf blower will keep
the paths clear”
Alan Rodgerson
Secretary
Kirkholt Bowling Club

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Kirkholt Bowling Club
Kirkholt Bowling Club Maintenance Equipment
Members Fund
£1,000

Kirkholt Bowling Club provides recreational bowling opportunities for the local community
with an emphasis on encouraging young people to participate in this diversionary activity plus
a socially inclusive sport for older people. The club has a successful junior league and
experienced members volunteer their time on a weekly basis to teach bowling. This social
activity is enjoyed by young and old (members aged from 6 to 83) with the sport encouraging
mutual understanding and respect between the generations.
The club were awarded a grant to enable them to acquire equipment to maintain the grounds
of the bowling club. A water removal machine to efficiently remove surface water from the
bowling green to ensure fixtures can continue despite adverse weather conditions. A leaf
blower to clear leaves from the footpaths and shelters around the club’s green to prevent
them becoming slipping hazards. This new equipment ensures Kirkholt Bowling Club’s
grounds will be ready to welcome back players and spectators.

Page 95

…enabled CWTC to develop unique
accessible online resources needed to
support our diverse communities and
services. This will help increase our
engagement with other target groups,
attract new service users and help
continue to build a sustainable community
resource”
Mohammed Sarwar
Chief Executive, Centre of Wellbeing,
Training and Culture
Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Centre of Wellbeing, Training and Culture
Managing healthier lifestyle
Projects Fund
£2,618.32

Centre of Wellbeing, Training and Culture (CWTC) aims to raise awareness of health
inequalities and offers support across all communities with the provision of training,
education and arts to enrich the quality of life of the diverse, vulnerable and disadvantaged
communities of Rochdale. The training centre and media channel deliver high quality
services to inspire and empower vulnerable individuals in a dignified manner to live a
healthier lifestyle to enhance their mental and physical wellbeing. The free to access media
channel means individuals can obtain vital health information without the need to visit the
centre – an imperative need during the Covid pandemic. CWTC provide accredited level 2
courses in Understanding Dementia, Supporting Carers, Diabetes and Mental Health for
staff, carers and community. Also the centre organises events for the diverse community to
increase awareness in dementia and wellbeing plus cultural day trips for their elderly
beneficiaries to places of interest in the North West. The CWTC Wellbeing Café provides
weekly reminiscence, arts for mental health, poetry, music, information and guidance from
health and social care services. In order to reach a wider audience, CWTC established CW
TV, an online Community TV Channel to support community organisations and services by
providing health information videos that are resourced in-house and translated into Urdu. To
support younger people, CWTC have created work placement referrals by Job Centre Plus,
Education Business Solution and Oldham Sixth Form Academy to provide students with
experience in office, communication and media skills. An extensive list of freelance tutors
and sessional workers are employed on a project basis to deliver sessions to develop
participants’ creativity, confidence, self-esteem and inter-personal skills. CWTC have
regular volunteers through work placements from referral agencies who assist in activities
and admin support to enhance their knowledge, skills and employability.

Page 96

CWTC during the Covid pandemic were unable to deliver their weekly activities to their service
users and decided to engage with both their existing users and reach new audiences through
online platforms and social media. Information videos have been produced aimed at BAME
communities by ensuring guidance is culturally appropriate and available in both Urdu and
English. The educational content of the information videos was created to mitigate fears,
improve understanding, increase resilience and encourage improved uptake of vital prevention
services. The mental health and nutrition topics covered in these information videos aim to
help to reduce the burden on health services by providing a bilingual resource and reduce the
risk of adverse Covid-19 associated health outcomes. Four short films were produced in Urdu
and English languages on the topics of family resilience, nutrition (healthy diet and lifestyle for
ethnic minority people), healthy lifestyle and arts for mental health. The films were promoted
to existing and new audiences through their various social marketing platforms and uploaded
to CWTC’s YouTube channel. The films will be shown at CWTC Wellbeing Café once the
Covid restrictions permit the centre to open.
Family Resilience | Video Produced by CWTC | CWTV Online - YouTube

Film about family resilience and the importance of having people you feel close to around you
to support you in this pandemic and general life. Family not only being blood relatives.
Explains that you can’t always control what happens to you but you can control how you
respond to the situation and to always keep a positive mind set, includes a 15 step
programme to overcome hardships that occur. Describes how you can learn to interact with
your family and how to not let your anger or frustration make you forget how important they
are to you.

Page 97

Nutrition | Healthy Diet and Lifestyle for Ethnic Minority People | CWTC | CWTV Online - YouTube

Film about the importance of a healthy diet and nutrition, as well as a healthy, active lifestyle.
Specifies how minority ethnics have a higher risk of developing health conditions due to poor
health and how to cater/alter your diet and lifestyle to help you achieve a healthier life.

Page 98

Healthy Lifestyle | CWTC | CWTV Online - YouTube

Film about a healthy and active lifestyle and how Covid-19 could be affecting that with
restrictions. Gives examples of home workouts that can be done and emphasises keeping
active and how that can positively impact your physical and mental life.

Page 99

Arts for Mental Health | CWTC | CWTV Online - YouTube

Film about mental health and what contributes to it, eg life experiences or family genetics,
etc. Explains how engaging in art can be beneficial to one’s mental health and how the
facilities they offer at CWTC can also help bring communities together, especially during
Covid-19.

Page 100

“Removal of the fencing and replacement
with the knee rail has stopped the ASB
issues”
Lee Wardle
Enforcement Officer
Environmental Management
Rochdale Borough Council

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management
Robinson Street knee rail
Capital Fund
£1,529.40

Residents from the Robinson Street area had contacted Rochdale Borough Council with
their concerns about drug dealing, drug use and associated anti-social behaviour.
Individuals were congregating behind a wooden fence to avoid detection whilst taking part in
these anti-social activities. A member of Rochdale Council’s Enforcement Team conducted
a site visit and proposed the removal of benches and the fence to resolve the issues.
The benches have been removed and the wooden fence has been replaced with a knee rail
on Robinson Street. These measures have stopped the anti-social behaviour in the area.

Used needles, discarded alcohol cans and
other rubbish was found behind the fence
on Robinson Street that evidenced the need
for this scheme

Page 101

“…improved the current play area in
Springfield Park to make it both a wellused community asset and attractive
destination play area that people from
across the borough will want to visit”
Michael Buczman
Project Officer
Environmental Management
Rochdale Borough Council

Recipient:
Project:
Fund:
Awarded:

Rochdale Borough Council’s Environmental Management
Springfield Park play equipment
Capital Fund
£5,000

Springfield Park is the borough’s largest park with landscaping and recreational facilities that
make it a wonderful asset for the local community. Visitors to the park can enjoy the walking
trails, outdoor gym, tennis courts, golf course, miniature steam railway, athletics track,
football pitch, pond and children’s play area. This well-tended green space serves as a
valued local place for leisure and recreation; somewhere to meet friends and family, get
some exercise, sit and read, relax, or simply take a walk that all have a profound positive
impact on the physical and mental health and wellbeing of the local community.
Friends of Springfield Park with Rochdale Council’s Environmental Management service
were exploring various funding sources to improve the play area in the park. The
contribution of £5,000 from Rochdale South Township, Section 106 and Play Capital funds
enabled the Springfield Park play area to be improved with the contract awarded to Kompan
UK who design and build inspiring playgrounds that develop and improve children’s physical,
cognitive, creative, and social/emotional skills in order to build key life skills and friendships.
Springfield Park play area re-opened in May 2021 with a new pirate themed multi-play unit
with accessible stairs, curly slide and an area for wheelchair users alongside two sets of
swings for toddlers and older children including a you and me seat swing that promotes child
and adult socialising and bonding. Also an inclusive roundabout with a ground level design

Page 102

and handholds that function from both sides, a four-child seesaw with foot support to
intensive the rocking and encourage cooperation, a seagull springer and rubber safety
surface with nautical themed graphics and treasure trail. The variety of play equipment will
enrich children’s active outdoor play time and encourage dramatic as well as explorative
play.

Page 103

APPENDIX 5

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2021/22

REVENUE FUNDS 2021/22 = £191,861

Fund

b/f 2020/21 Base Budget

Income/
Total Budget
Committed
Adjustments 2021/22

£0

£48,529

£0

£48,529

£0

Members Fund

£0

£30,000

£0

£30,000

£0

£0

£30,000

£0

£30,000

£0

£83,332

£0

£0

£83,332

£83,332

£83,332

£108,529

£0

£191,861

Page 104

REVENUE FUNDS
Projects Fund

Ward Fund

Township Allocated
Funds
TOTAL

Budget Available
2021/22

Notes

£48,529 Fund to resource larger revenue and Rochdale Township
wide projects that meet the Township's priorities. Base
budget of £48,529.
£30,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and
environment. Base budget of £30,000 will provide each
Rochdale South Township Councillor with £2,000 to allocate
to revenue projects within their Ward.
£30,000 Fund to resource smaller revenue projects that address local
issues/demands for the benefit of the local community and
environment. Base budget of £30,000 will provide each
Rochdale South Township Ward with £6,000 to allocate to
projects within their Ward.
£0 Brought forward budget of £83,332 for pre 2021/22
approved projects.

CAPITAL FUNDS 2021/22 = £103,831
CAPITAL FUNDS
Fund

b/f 2020/21 Base Budget

Capital Fund
TOTAL

Income/
Total Budget
Committed
Adjustments 2021/22

£0

£103,831

£0

£103,831

£0

£103,831

£0

£103,831

£0

Page 1 of 1

Budget Available
2021/22

Notes

£103,831 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the
Township priorities. Base budget of £103,831.

APPENDIX 6
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUND TERMS AND CONDITIONS 2021/22
Rochdale South Township’s vision is to create a friendly, clean and safe Township characterised by
harmonious and diverse communities. We want the town to be proud of its co-operative spirit and industrial
heritage; to build on these qualities for a prosperous future as part of the City Region. Efforts to increase
community cohesion and involvement from people of different generations, backgrounds and cultures must
permeate all activities.

1. Purpose of the fund
Councillors, Council Services, partner agencies, third sector organisations and area forums can submit
projects on relevant application forms for funding from Rochdale South Township Funds. All projects must
show how they will address the Rochdale South Township priorities of:





People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be
healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives. We will enable
communities to thrive and develop.
Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live,
work and invest.
Prosperity - We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create
the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs.

2. Projects must be
a) Within the powers of the Council.
b) Supplement or enhance current Council service provision.
c) Benefit the Township community.
d) Support the Township’s priorities and the Township Plan.
e) Be sponsored by a Rochdale South Township Councillor who is prepared to recommend the
project/grant and justify its significance to the Township’s priorities.
3. Who may apply?
a) Council Services.
b) Partner organisations (Link4Life, etc).
c) Non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank account.
4. Activities that can be funded
a) Promoting active citizenship, voluntary effort and democratic involvement.
b) Promoting community-led food-growing, horticulture and landscaping.
c) Promoting community cohesion.
d) Promoting safer neighbourhoods, including diversionary activities for young people.
e) Promoting healthy living.

Page 105
1

Form RT02B

f)

Promoting inter-generational understanding and cooperation.

g) Promoting equality of opportunity for people with disabilities.
h) Promoting cycling, walking and horse riding and developing routes for these.
i)

Promoting Rochdale’s heritage.

j)

Increasing recycling and waste minimisation.

k) Starting up or reviving community groups, subject to the group working with a recognised agency
(Link4Life, Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, etc).
5. Items that can be funded
a) Purchase of street furniture eg seating, paving, railings, bollards, fencing, lights, CCTV.
b) Equipment hire or purchase, eg IT, sports, arts and crafts materials and equipment.
c) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by Township.
d) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities.
e) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff in addition to normal duties.
f)

Hiring or renting of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs).

g) Hiring of vehicles: short-term hire only, and not where there is viable public transport alternative.
h) Trips and outings with an educational value or part of larger programme.

6. Activities that may not be funded
a) Activities already started before funding is awarded.
b) Work that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing
services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide.
c) Parties.
d) Promoting religious or political causes.
e) Projects to benefit individuals.
f)

Improvements to private land, unless there is a demonstrable community benefit.

g) Repairing unadopted roads.
h) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory
functions.
i)

Contributing to charitable collections or running fund-raising events.

j)

General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc.

7. Items that may not be purchased with Township funds
a) Alcoholic drinks.
b) Motor vehicles.
c) Items bought before Township has given written approval.
d) Insurance.

Page 106
2

Form RT02B

8. Responsibilities of community groups applying for or in receipt of a grant
a) To submit applications on the correct form.
b) To only submit proposals that meet the terms and conditions and promote agreed priorities and
objectives in a cost-effective way.
c) To use grants only for the purposes for which it was approved. Any requests for change of use must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.
d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the
breakdown of expenditure.
e) To make claims for approved funding within 6 months of approval. Any extension to this period must be
made in writing and is subject to the Townships & Communities Manager’s discretion.
f)

Successful applicants must complete and return a project evaluation form and provide copy
invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as
detailed in the application form. This information must be provided to Rochdale Township Office within
one month of the conclusion of the project. Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions
being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies.

g) To claim VAT on purchases relating to the project only if they cannot claim it back from HM Revenue
and Customs.
h) To ensure that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), regulations (such as health
and safety) and insurance relating to their project/event are in place.
i)

Infection prevention and controls relating to the project/event are in place and comply with the
Government and Public Health guidelines.

j)

To have policies and procedures in place to protect children, young people or vulnerable adults when
applying for a project to work with such people.

k) To ensure adequate insurance (eg public liability) is in place if required.
l)

To agree that funding received for a project does not imply any commitment by the Council to continue
funding after the agreed finishing date.

m) To seek approval from the Townships & Communities Manager to dispose of or transfer any items
acquired with the grant.
9. Responsibilities of Services commissioned to deliver projects
a) To abide by the commissioning process set out in Section 15.
b) To complete a project brief and supply supporting documentation.
c) To ensure alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.
d) To seek approval in writing from the Townships & Communities Manager to make changes to the
breakdown of expenditure or timescale of delivery.
10. Responsibilities of Township Office
a) To ensure the application and decision-making process set out in section 13 is followed.

Page 107
3

Form RT02B

11. Responsibilities of Townships & Communities Manager
a) To make decisions, in consultation with the Ward Councillors, about the future of the project when a
Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has
not been re-elected.
12. Limitations
a) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded
by Township Funds.
b) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are
not adhered to.
c) The Council reserves the right to add specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the purpose of
the grant and/or the activities to be funded.
13. Application and Decision Making Process
a) Council Member or Officer submits a project proposal form to the Township Office.
b) Township Office will send the application form to the group or invite project brief from a service.
c) Township Office checks the application form to see if the project meets the terms and conditions of the
fund.
d) Township Office refers back proposals not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application
forms to the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation, and may request applicants to
supply additional information.
e) Township Office refers proposals for funding over £5,000 to the next Rochdale South Township
Delegated Sub Committee for decision.
f)

Township Office can use the officer scheme of delegation for proposals for funding of £5,000 or less.

g) Township Office will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Area Forum Sub Groups to seek
their support and submit for delegated decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.
h) Any disputes concerning the allocation of funds will be referred to the next Rochdale South Township
Delegated Sub Committee for decision.
i)

Township Office will notify applicants of decisions in writing within 15 working days of a Committee
decision or within 5 working days of an officer decision.

j)

There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.

14. Delegated Decision Making Process
a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition
Spokesperson of Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee, may decide on all projects for
£5,000 or less.
b) Township Office will ask Members to respond in writing within 10 working days. A nil response is
considered a response in support of the application.

Page 108
4

Form RT02B

c) Members will make decisions based on the information included in the application form.
d) Township Office will advise applicants in writing within 15 working days of a decision on the outcome of
their application.
e) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application.
f)

Township Office will make a written record of the officer decision:
i.

Project reference number.

ii. Description of project.
iii. Officer decision.
iv. Date of decision.
v. Reasons for decision.
vi. Comments received from the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokespersons with dates.
vii. Township Office will ask Members to state the reasons for not supporting the officer’s decision.
15. Commissioning Process
a)

All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the
specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs.

b)

Proposed projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant Service Provider to ensure
alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future
maintenance/monitoring requirements.

c)

The Service Provider should negotiate with Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee prior
to incurring any additional costs if they wish to make variations in costs or outcomes.

d)

Where Township wishes to vary the specification – the Service Provider will identify the implications of
the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations
with the Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee.

e)

Where a Service Provider wishes to vary the specification, they should submit the variations to the
Townships & Communities Manager with justification prior to incurring additional costs for
consideration by the Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee. The Committee may
decide not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if
the Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township
Funds.

f)

The Service Provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the
cost of the project on the Townships & Communities Manager receiving evidence of the start of the
project as agreed. Stage payments may be agreed.

g)

The Service Provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving
the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports.

h)

Where a Service Provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Rochdale South
Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the Service Provider, withhold funds
(or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service).

i)

The Service Provider must bear any unapproved additional costs incurred, unless agreed otherwise
with the Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee.

j)

Service Providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment.

Page 109
5

Form RT02B

Agenda Item 11
Report to Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub-Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

3 August 2021
Communities & Co-operation
Sharron Worrall
Public

Rochdale South Township Funds 2021/22
1.
1.1

2.

Executive Summary
Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Rochdale South Township Funds 2021/22 and enable the
allocation of funds to proposed projects.
Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Rochdale
South Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Rochdale South Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair, Vice
Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee, to be given delegated
authority to make decisions on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Rochdale South Township Fund is delegated to the
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2

Rochdale South Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 110

3.3

4.

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Rochdale South
Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Rochdale South Township Funds 2021/22 in Appendix 1 and 2.
Actual/committed spend for revenue funds is 43.43% and capital funds is 0%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Rochdale South
Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure that Members are aware of the
projects that have been agreed within their Ward. Members are asked to note
the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since the last
committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Projects have been identified for funding from Rochdale South Township
Funds 2021/22. Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or
defer the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects
listed in Appendix 4.

4.4

To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2021/22, Members
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair, Vice Chair and opposition spokesperson of the committee.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Rochdale South Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2021/22 in
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Rochdale South Township Fund to ensure best use of available
resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
will be updated to reflect how funds are allocated across the Townships in line
with the identified priorities.

Page 111

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those
priorities.

6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the
Council has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of
any changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to
provide them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with
them and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their
obligations under the Compact.

7.
7.1

Consultation
Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee receives regular
monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding
requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be consulted
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall Tel: 01706 924802
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 112

APPENDIX 1

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2021/22

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE

£

Budget b/f 2020/21
Base Budget 2021/22
Income/Adjustments 2021/22
Total budget for 2021/22
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2021/22

83,331
108,529
191,860
36,232
47,097
83,329
108,531

Page 113

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

Funds

Members Fund
Ward Fund
Projects Fund
Township Allocated Funds (pre 2021/22)
Total

REVENUE FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
18.88%

% Actual +
Committed
43.43%

191,860
-

Budget
b/f 2020/21
£
83,331
83,331

48,529

Base
Budget
2021/22
£
30,000
30,000
48,529
108,529

Income/
Adjustments
2021/22
£
-

Revised
Budget
2021/22
£
30,000
30,000
48,529
83,331
191,860

Committed
£
47,097
47,097

Actuals
£
5,866
5,866

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
30,366
30,366

Total
£
83,329
83,329

Budget
remaining
2021/22
£
30,000
30,000
48,529
2
108,531

APPENDIX 2

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2021/22

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL

103,831
103,831
103,831

Forecast Outturn
Potential over/underspend

103,831
-

Page 114

Budget b/f 2020/21
Base Budget 2021/22
Income/Adjustments 2021/22
Total budget for 2021/22
Budgets transferred to Services/Actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2021/22

Funds

Capital Fund
Total

CAPITAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

% Actual
Spend
0.00%

£

Budget
b/f 2020/21
£
-

103,831

Base
Budget
2021/22
£
103,831
103,831

Income/
Adjustments
2021/22
£
-

Revised
Budget
2021/22
£
103,831
103,831

% Actual +
Committed
0.00%

Committed
£
-

Actuals
£
-

Virement
within
Virement
Township to Services
Funds
£
£
-

Total
£
-

Budget
remaining
2021/22
£
103,831
103,831

APPENDIX 3

ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair, Vice Chair and Opposition Spokesperson
of Rochdale South Township Delegated Sub Committee
Name of Project

Project Description

M/47/20

Chesham Park Play
Area Upgrade

W/51/20

Balderstone Park
Kissing Gate

Improve the play provision for older children in Chesham Park Play Castleton
Area, Castleton with the renewal of the safety surfacing under the
cone climber and installation of a new basket swing.
Balderstone
Supply and installation of a kissing gate at the Great Gates Road
entrance to Balderstone Park, Rochdale to address the problem of & Kirkholt
unauthorised vehicles accessing this green space. The kissing
gate will be RADAR key accessible to allow for mobile scooters
and wheelchairs whilst its dimensions will also allow for
pedestrians with prams. Improvements to the tarmac surface and
boundary knee rail will also be undertaken at this entrance to
Balderstone Park to create a safer environment for park users.

Page 115

Ref No.

M/40/20

RP/30/20

RP/32/20

Ward

Rhodes Ravine Litter
Bins

Supply of two standard metal closed top litter bins for installation at
Rhodes Ravine, Kirkholt on Morningside Road and Rhodes
Crescent to encourage the community to dispose of their litter
responsibly and keep the area clean.
Lonsdale Avenue and Supply and installation of a salt bin at the junction of Lonsdale
Avenue and Kingsway, Rochdale as this location becomes
Kingsway Junction
hazardous during wintry conditions. The salt bin will be sited at the
Salt Bin
optimum location to enable treatment of the road at critical points
whilst ensuring it does not impede pedestrians.
Environmental Crime Contribution towards a deployable CCTV system for location in fly
CCTV Camera
tipping hot spots within Rochdale South Township to provide a
high profile deterrent, quality/easily accessible footage to help
identify, prosecute and issue fines to offenders through the courts
to recover local authority costs, opportunities for media footage
and stills to be used to advertise incidents and locate witnesses
and ultimately reduce fly tipping and littering.

Page 1 of 2

Balderstone
& Kirkholt

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£2,500 24 February 2021
Awarded £2,500
from Ward Fund

Amount

£3,498 04 March 2021

Awarded £3,498
from Ward Fund

£645.70 04 March 2021

Awarded £645.70
from Members
Fund

Kingsway

£1,050 11 March 2021

Awarded £1,050
from Projects Fund

Rochdale
South
Township

£4,527.30 11 March 2021

Awarded £4,527.30
from Projects Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

Project Description

Ward

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£637.50 23 March 2021
Awarded £637.50
from Ward Fund

Amount

Castleton
Provision of a variety of flowers from Bowlee Nursery for planting
in the planters and hayracks at Castleton Railway Station and
saddle planters and hanging baskets in Castleton Village to create
attractive floral displays for the enjoyment of the local community
and visitors.

M/62/19

Castleton Cricket
Tournament 2021

Punjab Cricket Club propose to organise an outdoor six a side
cricket tournament from 22 May to 23 May 2021 to provide an
opportunity for local young people to participate in social physical
activity and promote positive relationships between groups/teams
from different ethnic backgrounds/communities. Latest England
Cricket Board Covid-19 guidance and UK Government guidance
for recreational sport during Covid restrictions will be adhered to
and the club and venue will ensure control measures are in place
to limit risks whilst participants enjoy this grassroots sport that will
benefit both their physical and mental wellbeing.

Castleton

£2,000 05 May 2021

Awarded £2,000
from Projects Fund

W/47/20

Castleton floral
displays

£500 07 May 2021

Awarded £500 from
Ward Fund

RP/12/20

Tackling Minds

Castleton
Provision of bedding plants and compost from Bowlee Garden
Nursery for planters, hayracks, saddle planters and hanging
baskets located in Castleton Village and the Railway Station to
create attractive floral displays for the enjoyment of the local
community and visitors.
Tackling Minds CIC organise angling events to improve the health Rochdale
Township
and wellbeing of the local community with a focus on increasing
participation from people with mental health, addiction and
recovery issues, experiencing social deprivation, disabilities and
long-term health conditions. The Angling Trust Get Fishing Award
is incorporated into the Tackling Minds events that offer fun,
friendly and safe fishing days for families and individuals of all
abilities. Every angler that completes the Get Fishing Award will
receive their very own introductory start-up kit and they will be kept
engaged with informal and formal competitions, target species or a
style of fishing and the opportunity to fish at numerous venues.
Tackling Minds plan to promote their services with the creation of a
web site, advertising on social media, information pamphlets and
establish their own merchandise line to generate funds to support
their community projects.

£2,000 07 May 2021

Awarded £2,000
from Projects Fund

Page 116

W/56/17 & Enhancing Castleton
W/45/18
Railway Station &
Castleton Village

Page 2 of 2

APPENDIX 4
ROCHDALE SOUTH TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2021/22
Projects Fund available for allocation = £48,529

Rochdale South Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

RP/02/21

Rochdale
Yes
Al-Abbas Institute
£2,796.73
Township
People
Al-Abbas Institute to deliver five classes/workshops per week (8 hours each week for 43 weeks) to BAME children and young people on core curriculum
subjects and information to deter involvement in criminal and anti-social behaviour and awareness about all forms of crime and exploitation. In addition, two
seminars per week will be delivered to provide advice, guidance and support on education matters and services available for BAME communities and one
seminar per week will provide advice on health and mental wellbeing support in the context of education for BAME children, young people and their parents.
Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township as the project will benefit participants from wards in both Townships.
(Application form at Appendix 4A)

Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/05/21

Ward

Development and Learning Support

None

Page 117

Rochdale
Township

Community engagement cultural night

Yes
People

Pakistani & Kashmiri
Community
Association

£4,555.18

Project Description

Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association propose to organise a Pakistan Independence Day event on 14 August 2021 to celebrate Pakistani culture, its
many faiths and bring existing, new and emerging communities together. The event will celebrate those from a Pakistani heritage and how they chose to
settle all over Britain in towns like Rochdale and also a showcase of the cultures, languages and traditions. Communities will have an opportunity to come
together to celebrate Rochdale's diversity and the event will foster better community cohesion between different communities, generations, faiths and
cultures. Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township as a Rochdale Township wide event. (Application form at
Appendix 4B)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
RP/07/21

None

Project Description

Awakening Minds propose to host a three-hour programme to rejuvenate the local community after the end of Covid restrictions. The event will promote a
sense of wellbeing, purpose and worth with attendees participating in dance, movement and music therapy. Opportunities will be provided to express
frustrations, fears and trauma experienced during the pandemic to Mental Health First Aid responders and the event will introduce, encourage and offer
inclusive mental health support to the South Asian community. (Application form at Appendix 4C)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

None

Milkstone & Yes
Deeplish
People

Mental health rejuvenation event

Page 1 of 3

Awakening Minds

£2,010

Rochdale South Township Projects Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met
Pakeeza Women's
Milkstone & Yes
Group
Deeplish
People

Ref

Name of Project

RP/08/21

Independence day event and participation workshops

Project Description

Pakeeza Women's Group propose to organise activities to build the confidence of their members as the Covid restrictions are lifted. A Pakistan
Independence Day event involving a poetry performance with exhibition and three songs and poetry workshops at Castlemere Community Centre facilitated
by the Multi Cultural Resource Centre. A person to be hired to undertake administration, outreach and publicity for the Pakeeza Women's Group for eight
hours per week for six weeks. (Application form at Appendx 4D)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

None

Ward

£1,480

Capital Fund available for allocation = £103,831

Rochdale South Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

TC/01/21

Yes
Councillor Shakil
£3,000
Place
Ahmed
Installation of six pedestrian dropped kerbs on Muriel Street, Rochdale to provide crossing locations to improve accessibility for residents in the area.
(Project brief at Appendix 4E)

Page 118

Project Description
Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
TC/05/21
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered
TC/10/21
Project Description

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Ward
Kingsway

Muriel Street Dropped Kerbs

None
Rochdale
Yes
Councillor O'Neill
£5,581.28
Township
Place
Supply and installation of feature multi-coloured programmable lighting adjacent to Rochdale Town Hall to light up the trees and slopes in Broadfield Park to
enhance the night time environment in the centre of Rochdale. A floodlight using Colour Reach LED will be attached to existing heavy duty street lighting
column 13 The Esplanade. Cost split pro-rata between Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township as this project relates to a Rochdale Town
Centre location. (Project brief at Appendix 4F)

Broadfield Park Feature Lighting

Availability and increase unit costs of specified equipment. Limited access to street lighting equipment due to ongoing refurbishment work on the Rochdale
Town Square project.
Rochdale
Yes
Rochdale Sports
£2,865.50
Township
Place
Club
Rochdale Sports Club propose to refurbish two squash court front walls and replace one floor that will complete the work on the four courts needed to
provide a long term high class sports facility. In addition, the windows and doors at the front of the building that provide both access to and viewing of the
external sports areas require replacement with new units that will be more thermally efficient and environmental friendly. Cost split pro-rata between
Rochdale South Township and Rochdale North Township as a Rochdale Township wide project. (Application form at Appendix 4G)

Rochdale Sports Club Squash Court/Windows Refurbishment

None

Page 2 of 3

Rochdale South Township Capital Fund 2021/22 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria &
Request Originator Cost
Priorities Met

Ref

Name of Project

Ward

TC/11/21

Bertha Road/Rosefield Crescent/Margaret Avenue traffic calming and
pedestrian refuge traffic island on Milnrow Road

Kingsway

Project Description

Introduction of a 20mph zone with self-enforcing traffic calming measures consisting of approximately three round top humps, 20mph zone entry signs,
20mph repeater signs, 20mph roundel road markings along Bertha Road/Rosefield Crescent and Margaret Avenue, Rochdale. Consultation with local
residents and introduction of 20mph speed limit and road hump Traffic Regulation Order. Provision of a pedestrian refuge traffic island on Milnrow Road
between Bertha Road and Rosefield Crescent that will involve the removal of the grass verges to install dropped crossings and tactile paving, installation of
the pedestrian refuge island with associated bollards and illuminated refuge beacon. (Project brief and plan at Appendix 4H)

Risk implication/
Alternatives considered

Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development
resulting in additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward
Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any
objections received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate
assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising and no need to alter
statutory services in the highway.

Page 119
Page 3 of 3

Yes
Place

Councillor Shakil
Ahmed

£35,500

APPENDIX 4A

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2020/21
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/02/21

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Development and Learning Support

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Al-Abbas Institute

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
We are a voluntary social enterprise community group set up about 10 years ago to serve and support the
Rochdale communities.
Our aims are dedicated to:







The ethical, moral, social and spiritual development of children and young adults to be law-abiding
citizens of the United Kingdom.
Educating and empowering children and young people to avoid all types of criminal and anti-social
behavior, and all forms of exploitation.
Providing education that adheres, incorporates and promotes British Values.
Helping and supporting those who are the most vulnerable members of our society.
Seeking to create a healthy and safe educational environment that is nurturing, empowering, loving,
and positive where students can grow, develop, and maximize their potential.
Treating everyone with respect, integrity and honesty.

Our objectives are to:




Provide classes/workshops to deliver essential educational, personal, social, developmental and
health related input to children, and young people as well as their parents.
Provide seminars to parents to provide advice and support on education related matters, and
services available.
Undertake outreach work to support the most vulnerable members of our society.

Our activities include providing and delivering:





Classes/workshops to deliver education and learning for children, and young people.
Advice, guidance and support on education matters services available for BAME communities, and
parents.
Health and mental health well-being support in the context of education for BAME children, young
people, and their parents.
Essential provisions for the elderly and the vulnerable in our community by carrying this duty for
them.

Page 120

Form RT03

d) Contact name

Zafar Khan

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

N/A

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
The BAME communities, in general, have disproportionally suffered during the Covid-19 pandemic and this
is also the case for the BAME communities in Rochdale. They face barriers in opportunities for education
and employment, and during the pandemic, these have been exacerbated. We are based in the centre of
Rochdale which is the most deprived area in Rochdale where we would like to support BAME children and
young people, and their parents by delivering the following:




5 classes/workshops per week to deliver core curriculum subjects as well as input on avoiding
criminal and anti-social behavior, and all forms of crime and exploitation for children, and young
people.
2 seminars per week to provide advice, guidance and support on education matters services
available for BAME communities and parents.
1 seminar per week to provide advice on health and mental health well-being support in the context
of education for BAME children, young people and their parents.

These classes/workshops will provide children and young people with essential educational input as well as
advice, guidance and support to avoid crime, anti-social behaviors and all forms of exploitation. The
seminars will provide much needed support for parents so that they can better support their children’s
education.
These classes/workshops/seminars will take place w/c 02 August 2021 to 27 May 2022 for period of 43
weeks. There will 8 hours delivered each week for 43 weeks, which is a total of 344 hours. The cost per hour
will be £10 (this is a reduced rate for us from the facilitators) and so the total cost for this part of the project
will be £3440.00.
All facilitators are fully DBS checked and fully qualified teachers, and facilitators.
Project start date

01 September 2021

Project completion
date

Page 121

29 June 2022

Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£6880.00

b) Amount of grant required

£4880.00

c) Amount from other sources

£2000.00

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

The remaining £2000 has been
pledged by 4 local businesses.

They have each pledged £500 for
the overall costs of running the
centre.

They have already agreed these
donations.

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Fully qualified facilitators and teachers to deliver the
classes/workshops/seminars for subjects/input as described above.

£10 per hour for 8 hours per week
for 43 weeks = £3440.00

To purchase 5 laptops for the learners to be able to use during their
classes/workshops to support their learning. Each laptop will cost
£288.00.

£1440.00.

Page 122

TOTAL £4880.00.
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure
SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Zafar Khan

Full name

Mazhar Iqbal Khan

Position

Chairperson

Position

Secretary

Date

14/06/21

Date

14/06/21

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale
Township Office Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 123
Form RT03

Quotation
Date: 9 July 2021
To:
Al-Abbas Institute
Moore Street,
Rochdale.
OL16 1QN.

From:
Mazhar Khan
Account number –:
.
Sort code –:
.

Email:

Qty

Description

Unit Price

129

3 weekly workshops, each 1 hour for 43
weeks. Maths and PSHE.
Dates: 2 August 2021 to 27 May 2022.

£10
p/hour

Total
Thanks!
M. Khan

Page 124

Total
£1,290

£1,290

QUOTATION

DATE: 09 JULY 2021

TO:

FROM:

Al-Abbas Institute
Moore Street,
Rochdale.
OL16 1QN.

Raza Iqbal Khan

Account number:
Sort code:

QUANTITY

DESCRIPTION

129

Science and PSHE workshops. 3 x 1
hour workshops every week from 02
August 2021 to 27 May 2022 for 43
weeks.

TOTAL:

Thank you.

R. Khan

Page 125

UNIT PRICE

TOTAL

£10 per hour

£1,290.00

£1,290.00

9/7/2021

Quotation

To
Al-Abbas Institute, Moore Street,
Rochdale.
OL16 1QN

From;
Miss Saila Aslam
Email
Acc. no:
Sort code:
Quantity
86

Description

Unit Price

Workshops delivered between 05/08/20-27/05/2021. 2 x 1 hour
workshops for 43 weeks delivering English language skills and
citizenship.

Total Due

£10 p/hr

Total
£860

£860

Thank you.

S. Aslam

Page 126

Tel:
Email:

Quotation
Organisation Name &
Address:
Quotation No:
Quotation Date:
Order No:

Al-Abbas Institute, Moore Street, Rochdale. Lancs. OL16 1QN.
01AAI
20/06/2021
01

Description of work

Dates & Cost

Purchase of 5 x Laptops + installed all software as
per requirements. Cost of each laptop £288.

Total cost = £1440.

Total Payable:

£1440.00

Cheques to be made payable to:
Or:

Page 127

APPENDIX 4B

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2021/22
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/05/21

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Community Engagement Cultural Night

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides



To promote friendship, goodwill, understanding, partnership and interaction between the
communities of different backgrounds living or working in Rochdale.



To raise awareness about the issue that affect their lives and livelihood and promote health and
wellbeing through various activities and awareness sessions.



To organize social, cultural, welfare and sporting activities for residents in Rochdale including
children, students, men, women and elders for recreational and other leisure time with the object of
promoting racial harmony and improving quality of life of the above mentioned.

d) Contact name

Mudassir Yasin

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

www.pkca.org.uk

Page 128
Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
These two township projects we were funded and delivered upon.
CG/05/16 – Rinse & Recycle (Grant awarded £2,200 in November 2016)
CE/11/16 – Football Tournament (Grant awarded £1,500 in October 2016)

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?

Event:

Pakistan Independence Day 2021

Location: Middleton Arena
When:

14th August 2021

Timings: 6:30pm
PKCA plan to hold our annual 2021 Pakistan Independence Day celebrations at Number One Riverside in
Rochdale for the flag raising event.
Its aim is to celebrate the Pakistani culture, its many faiths and to bring existing, new and emerging
communities together. This will be a covid compliant, community cohesion event and will also serve as a
great way for communities and stakeholders to learn more about the Pakistani community in Rochdale and
their contribution to society and economy.
This event will celebrate those from a Pakistani heritage and how they chose to settle all over Britain in
towns like Rochdale.
Our current mayor Cllr Aasim Rashid was born in Pakistan but is now a son of Rochdale; a town where
people venture from all over the world, of different heritage, but are always proud to be where they are from
and are now.
Rochdale has been a home to people from many different backgrounds for many years, so this is a
celebration of Rochdale’s diversity.
The event will re-emphasise the message that Rochdale has also been a beacon in recognising that it is
129
possible to be a good citizen of Britain whilst still Page
cherishing
the Pakistani heritage. Rochdale has been a
Form RT03

home to people from many different backgrounds for many years, so this will be a celebration of Rochdale’s
diversity.
The message from PKCA, and especially on Pakistan Independence Day is, and will be that we do not
tolerate or accept division in any part of society
This event will showcase the many cultures of Pakistan, the languages and traditions.

After a long period where Rochdale, like many other towns and cities across the UK, were affected
by the Covid-19 pandemic and lockdowns – this will be a fantastic event for our communities to
have an opportunity for some celebration, albeit in a measured and safe way.
Another positive outcome we would expect from this event will be improved relations, mutual
respect and better understanding between the authorities, the local communities and the British
Pakistani youth in particular.
By including and involving the wider community it will foster better community cohesion between
different communities, generations, faith and cultures.
The organisers will ensure that this event is covid compliant by:
 having covid marshals
 distribution of masks
 hand sanitiser stations
 personnel to ensure social distancing is maintained
Project start date

14th August 2021

Project completion
date

14th August 2021

Page 130
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£8648.32

b) Amount of grant required

£7948.32

c) Amount from other sources

£700.00

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

Members Contribution

£300.00

29/06/2021

Business Sponsors

£400.00

29/06/2021

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Venue Hire

£3240.32

Entertainment

£2500.00

Poster, Tickets, Advertisement & Promotion

£348.00

Videography & Photography

£400.00

Food/Refreshments

£2160.00

Page 131

TOTAL 8648.32
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure
SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Mudassir Yasin

Full name

Haseeb Ahmed

Position

Chair Person

Position

Secretary

Date

29/06/2021

Date

29/06/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale
Township Office Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 132
Form RT03

FW: Function Costs
July 8, 2021 | 1:00 pm | 82 KB
From:
Nazam Suleman
To:
pkca.org.uk

Please see below
Nazam Suleman

To access our services go to www.rochdale.gov.uk
For news and social media updates go to www.rochdale.gov.uk/news
Please consider the environment before printing this email.
From:
Sent: 07 July 2021 11:02
To: Nazam Suleman
Subject: Function Costs

Page 133

Venue Hire Fees
Main Auditorium with 8ft (shallow) stage: £1,157.63. This fee will include use of the house technical equipment,
which is normally charged in addition to venue hire. Value c£700
X18 ten foot round banqueting tables: FOC
180 Banquet chairs: FOC
180 chair covers and bows FOC
18 ten foot round table cloths: FOC
18 ornamental centre pieces FOC
Total Venue Hire Costs: £1,157.63
Staffing
Set Up /Take Down Team: X4 Staff £448.00 (£16.00 per hour, 7 hours total)
Technician: £308.64 (£25.72 per hour, 12 hour call)
FOH Manager: £126.00 (£18.00 per hour, 7 hour call)
X5 FOH Stewards: £560.00 (£16.00 per hour, 7 hour call)
Total staffing cost: £1,442.64
Total Costs Net: £2,700.27
VAT: £520.05
Total Costs Gross: £3,240.32

Page 134

INVOICE
INV3011
Salim Sabri
DATE
7 Jul 2021

BALANCE DUE
GBP £2,200.00

BILL TO
Pakistani & Kashmiri Community Association

DISCRIPTION
Sufi Qawwali Night
Event: 74th Pakistan Independence Day- Evening
Celebration Dinner

RATE

QTY

AMOUNT

£2,500.00

1

£2,500.00

Date: 14th August 2021
Address: Middleton Arena,
Middleton,
Manchester
M24 1AG
Rate inclusive of travel; sound system should be
organised independently.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Deposit Paid
Remainder of balance to be paid on the night

-£300.00

SUBTOTAL

1

-£300.00

£2,200.00

TAX (0%)
£0.00
_______________________________________
TOTAL
£2,500.00
_______________________________________
BALANCE DUE
GBP £2,200.00
_______________________________________

Page 135

Pakistani & Kashmiri
Community Association

Date:
28/06/2021

Invoice No:

AMOUNT

VAT

Quotation
QTY

DESCRIPTION

100

A3 posters - digital - printed on 250gsm

£70.00

£14.00

400

14th August Tickets - printed on 370gsm

£120.00

£24.00

2

Posters Designing work

£100.00

£20.00

Poster Designing Charges: £50+vat (each)

SUBTOTAL £
VAT TOTAL
TOTAL £

290.00
58.00
348.00

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!
Registered in England & Wales No.
Company VAT No:

Page 136

PROFORMA INVOICE

INVOICE TO:
Pakistani & kashmiri Community Association

COMMENTS OR SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

SALESPERSON

P.O. NUMBER

REQUISITIONER

SHIPPED VIA

D-389
QUANTITY

5

DESCRIPTION

Coverage of 3-4 Hour sessions, includes Pictures, Videos, Converted
on to CD

F.O.B. POINT

TERMS

25.06.2021

50% Down

UNIT PRICE

TOTAL

£80.00

£400.00

SUB TOTAL

£400.00

DISCOUNTS

Page 137

VAT

Inclusive

TOTAL

£400.00

C AST LE M E R E

Quotation

C O M M U N I T Y C EN T RE
www.castlemere.org.uk

PKCA

DATE:

07 July 2021

OUR REF:

PKCA/Jul 21

YOUR REF:

Qty

Description

Unit price

Total

Pakistan Day Dinner 14 August 21
Catering for 200 ppl (menu as discussed)
Crockery / Cutlery Hire
Waiters / Serving Staff (4 staff)

Sub Total

£2,160.00

TOTAL

£2,160.00

Tweedale Street • Rochdale • Lancashire • OL11 1HH
Telephone: 01706 645200 ~ Email: info@castlemere.org.uk
Company Limited by Guarantee • Registered in England & Wales 3887534

Page 138
Registered Charity No. 1085737
•

£1,700.00
£300.00
£160.00

APPENDIX 4C

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2021/22
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/07/21

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Mental Health Rejuvenation event

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Awakening Minds

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Awakening Minds Practice is a specialist Punjabi Mental Health service. Founded in 2006, in the wake of rising mental
health crisis, increased attempted suicides and racism amongst BAME communities in the UK. Awakening Minds
settled in the heart of multi‐cultural Rochdale to deliver inclusive and confidential ad‐hoc support.
We Provide a wide range of community‐based mental health and wellbeing services to individuals and families,
including educating and supporting them with their mental health issues. Based in Rochdale, the culturally sensitive
and appropriate mental health services we offer have a particular focus on Punjabi and South Asian communities.
97% of our beneficiaries are from ethnic minority communities.
Awakening Minds aims are:
 To normalise conversations about mental health in BAME communities.
 To address the stigma of mental illness, and to improve its understanding South Asian and Muslim
communities; and
 To ensure that individuals and families are able to access support for mental illness in an efficient and timely
manner.
Awakening Minds services are:
With healthcare and cultural expertise, the CIC currently provide the following services:
 Community‐Based Trauma‐Informed Care (TIC)
 Grounding
 Mental health healing/ talking circle
 Suicide intervention
 Mental health awareness course
 Mental health first‐aid course
 Befriending service.
 Digital Support
 Food Provision
d) Contact name
e) Contact telephone

Nasrine Akhtar

Page 139
Form RT03

f) Contact address and
postcode

Office 224 Ashfield Road, Rochdale OL11 1 QU
Currently working form home:

g) Email address
h) Web address

www.awakening-minds.org

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
Applied December 2019 for one off Multi cultural Karaoke Night with Cllr Zaman who kindly granted £250
towards the total cost of the project,
Cllr Samina Zaheer Kindly contributed £1350 for the total cost for annual venue hire.

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 140
Form RT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Case for support and Impact:
Awakening Minds impact:
In the past year, the COVID‐19 pandemic has both created and exacerbated pre‐existing mental issues. The CIC has
been proactive in the community, supporting over 300 families with emergency COVID relief in the form of financial,
emotional and physical support. This includes providing food and digital tools for those in need.
Additionally, the CIC has been running a weekly youth and seniors group, made up of 16 Asian women; and also
provided a weekly ‘Safe Space’ for adult Asian women where they are free to share their concerns and receive peer
support.
In addition, the CIC boosted our capacity for mental health support by training:
 24 Asian volunteers as Mental Health First Aiders
 41 Asian participants in mental health awareness
The proposed event is a three‐hour programme to rejuvenate the local community by giving them an event they can
trust upon re‐entering the world after the end of Covid‐19 restrictions.
The effect of Covid‐19 on the local community and service users has been:









Isolation. The local community have lost touch with one another ‐ be it their family, neighbours, or friends. In the
South Asian diaspora, close community relations are the way of living. This brings comfort, a sense of home and
passion about their culture. This exclusion has not only left them feeling alone, but has left them feeling exposed
to racism, xenophobia, Islamophobia, and the brunt of the Covid‐19 backlash.
Increase in racism.
Increase in Islamophobia.
Increase in completed suicides & suicide ideation.
Poverty.
Worsening mental health.
Fear of the outside.

The rejuvenation event will be the first for many if not all our members since November 2019. The attendees can be
safe in the knowledge that hygiene, health and safety and Covid‐19 regulations are being followed, by people that
they are familiar within both a personal and professional level. All our volunteers are local community members & are
all Mental Health First Aid responders, equipped with the necessarily skills to serve and support.
This much needed gathering will provide a sense of wellbeing, purpose and worth. By including dance by way therapy
and light relief, movement & music therapy have proven to be extremely beneficial and soothing. By providing a
colourful, vibrant, and engaging safe space, to express frustrations, fears, and trauma experienced during the world
pandemic.
Most importantly, they will be welcomed by people who they trust, care, and recognise within the communities. We
aim to highlight the importance of selfcare. This is a form of introducing, encouraging, and providing inclusive mental
health support for the South Asian community.
Project start date

27 August 2021

Project completion
date

27 August 2021

Page 141
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£3625

b) Amount of grant required

£2010

c) Amount from other sources

£1615

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Awakening Minds (Fundraising)
Cash Donations
In-kind

What they may fund
£405
£45
£1165

Dates of funding decisions
Raised June 30th, 2021
Received June 2021

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Project Manager
Host
Promotion & Marketing
Venue Hire (Ukrainian Center)
Volunteers’ costs (8 volunteers x £8 hr x 5 Hours)
Travel £4 per car x 5 cars
Professional DJ & Travel
Food & Drinks (100 women) (£12 pp)
Disposable utensils
PPE
Professional Belly Dancer
Professional Dancers x 4
Drum Player
Miscellaneous
Running Costs @ 10 %

£250
£150
£150
£75
£320
£20
£300
£1,200
£60
£20
£100
£400
£150
£100
£330

Total Cost

£3625

Page 142

TOTAL £3625
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure
SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Nasrine Akhtar

Full name

Sadia Mir

Position

Chair

Position

Head of Digital Comms

Date

30.06.2021

Date

30/06/2021

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale
Township Office Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 143
Form RT03

Awakening Minds
224 Ashfield Road Rochdale
Greater Manchester
OL11 1QH
Tel

05th August 2021
Quote No: 97/29032021
Quote Issued: 06.06.21

Ref: Project Management

Rejuvenation August 27th 2021

Qty

Description

1

Project Management
Planning & Engagement

Rate

Net
£500.00

Total Due

Gross
0

£500.00

£500.00

Payment Details

Account Name: Nasrine Akhtar
Account Number:

Vat

Sort code:

Page 144

INVOICE
FAO: Awakening Minds Practice
224 Ashfield Road
Rochdale
Greater Manchester
OL11 1QH0

Quote Date: 05.07.2021
Description: Celebration Day – Host & Facilitator

Address:
Email :
Mobile:

Payment : £150

Total - £150
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Please make all cheques payable to Fehmina Parveen or BACCS
Bank :
Account Number:
sort code:
Thank You

Page 145

To:
Awakening Minds
224 Ashfield Road
Rochdale
OL11 1QH
From: Sadia Mir
Address: Online

Date Quote Issued: August 21

Ref: Promotions & Social Media (August 2021)

Qty

Description

Rate

Net

Vat

Gross

1
1
1

Poster
Media content
Promotion

£50
£50
£100

£

NIL
NIL
NIL

£50
£50
£100

Total Due

£200.00

Payment Details
Account Name:
Account Number:
Sort code:

Page 146

СОЮЗ УКРАЇНЦІВ
У ВЕЛИКІЙ БРИТАНІЇ

ASSOCIATION OFUKRAINIANS IN
GREAT BRITAIN LIMITED

Ukrainian Home ‘Elmfield’, 15 Mere St, Rochdale, Lancs OL11 1HJ

Nasrine Akhtar
Awakening Minds
224 Ashfield Road
Rochdale
OL11 1QH

Contact:

Tel: 01706 646134

Maria Bdzola

Tel|:
Email:

DATE: 27th August 2021

INVOICE NUMBER: 8

Description

Cost per Session

Line Total

£75

£75.00

Invoice covering the following:
1
June

- Friday 14

Quantity of meetings: 1

Total Excluding VAT

VAT REGISTRATION NO:

VAT Rate @ 20%

Total Including VAT
Please make payment to:

N/A
N/A
N/A

£75.00
£ £75.00

Ukrainian Social Club (Zahrawa)

Bank:
Sort Code:
Account:

Page 147
Head Office: 49 Linden Gardens, Notting Hill Gate, London, W2 4HG, Tel: (020) 7229 8392
Established 1946. Company Registration Number: 446916

‘Your Generosity Makes All This Possible

Awakening Minds
224 Ashfield Road
Rochdale
Lancashire
OL11 1QS

“Donations welcome”
Bank:
Account:
Sort Code:
Not-For-Profit Community Interest Company (CIC)

Mailto:

- Mobile:

- Office:

Quote
Volunteer Costs : 27th August 2021
Description

Hours

Rate

Amount

Total

Rejuvenation Event
Volunteer and Pick up
Start Time: 17:00 pm – 23:00 pm
Ukrainian Centre
Ruman Shakil
Chris Hussain
Gulnar Vagherani
Shamiala Naz
Javaria Rajput
Nasir Mahmood
Leo Adams
Subhaan Khalil
Zara Akhtar
Aysha Khatoon
Ghazala Parveen

6
6
6
6
6
5
3
5
6
5
4

£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8
£8

TOTAL COST

48.00
48.00
48.00
48.00
48.00
40.00
24.00
40.00
48.00
40.00
32.00

£421.00

Thank you for your consideration, generosity & support

Page 148

Martin Singh –
E-mail address –

DDS – DJ & SPECIALISTS
Customer Quote
Customer name:- Awakening Minds
Customer contact number:-

1.

Date of occasion:- Friday 27 August 2021

Event Start Time:

18:00

Finish Time: 21.00

Venue of occasion:- None – Zoom Live

Total cost: £ 300

Deposit received: £0

Balance outstanding:£300

Declaration: All deposits received are non-refundable.
 The balance outstanding must be paid in full on the day of the occasion before the event is due to
commence.
 If we have to climb stairs to access the venue, an additional charge may apply  All stage money
is for DDS
Due to the occurrence of any unforeseen circumstances, and in the case that you may need to cancel
the booking, it is vital that you inform me seven days prior to the date of the event .

Payment/Deposit:_________Arranged________________________________
Customer:_________________Arranged________________________________________

Page 149

Bill To
Name:

Quote No.
Date: 06.07.21

Company Name:
Awakening Minds : 27th August 2021

Due Date:

Delivery Address
Ukraine Centre
Post Code:
Phone:
Catering for 100 – Including delivery and collection:
Must confirm order 7 days prior.

Description

Event

Price (£)

Total (£)

Brown riche with chickpeas
Chicken and potato curry
Naan
Yellow rice with almonds
Yogurt
Salad
Subtotal
VAT
Other
Total
£1100

Terms and Conditions
Thank you for your business. Please send payment within ______ days of receiving this invoice.
There will be a ___% per ___ on late invoices.

Page 150

https://www.catering24.co.uk/checkout/cart/

Page 151

To:
Awakening Minds
224 Ashfield Road
Rochdale
OL11 1QH

From: Sandra Dance UK
Name.
Address:

Date Quote Issued:

Qty

Description

1
4

Ref: August 27th 2021

05.07.2021

Rate (£)

Net (£)

Vat (£)

Gross

Live Show

£100

NIL

£100

Dancercise Workshop

£400

NIL

£400

Total Due

£500.00

Payment Details
Account Name:
Account Number:
Sort code:

Page 152

Date : 27th August 2021
Hire Quote

DISCRIPTION

QUANTITY

COST

£ / TOTAL

Large Professional Dholak &
Artist

X1

185

185.00

Dhaandiya Sticks A1

X 20 pairs 1.99 per pair

39.80

39.80

Page 153

TOTAL
Discount Applied :

£224.80
- £24.80

TOTAL TO PAY

£200.00

APPENDIX 4D

ROCHDALE TOWNSHIP FUND 2021/22
APPLICATION FORM

REF
RP/08/21

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Rochdale Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Independence Day & Participation workshops

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Pakeeza Women’s Group

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
1. To get women of Asian Background in an informal setting where they can socialise, learn how to be
independent, how to care themselves and learn new skills to keep themselves busy.
2. The aim is also to create an environment where women can share their experience/issues with other
members and feel relaxed and free from any mental health problems and feel relaxed.
3. To keep up dated with health related matters and how to deal with any health issue as it happens.
4. Dealing with loneliness when living alone in house on your own.
5. Provide training on basic skills to keep women busy when alone and bored.
6. Meet on a regular basis and organise visits and trips as required.
7. Exchange visits organised to share experience and learn from others in similar settings.

d) Contact name

Razia Shamim

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

http://www.pakeezawomens.org.uk/ (currently off)

Page 154

Form RT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
Various projects by township office in the past.
Information entered by the Township Office from their records:
M/13/18 & M/35/17 Pakistan Independence Day Information & Celebratory Event – grant awarded £1,090 in
August 2018
CE/15/17 Publicity & workshop on Asian women’s issues – grant awarded £730.30 in December 2017
M/66/16 Knitting skills sessions – grant awarded £350 in December 2017
M/15/15 Pakeeza Women Group Eid Milan & Independence Day – grant awarded £750 in August 2015
M/66/12 Health and wellbeing sessions – grant awarded £500 in June 2013
M/32/11 We are all one – grant awarded £200 in March 2012
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Since the start of Pandemic, the group was unable to meet. Now with the ease of the restrictions, we are
planning to start the group again with some activities to build the confidence of the members. These times
been very hard for our members, especially loosing family members and friends.
We are planning to have few sessions with our members to cheer up and build confidence. This will be
carried out with Pakistan Independence Day event plus 3 workshops/sessions
In addition, we will be carrying out some publicity marking at various places i.e. GP practices/health
professionals and other referral agencies to reach out to those women who are most in need of our services.
To resume work/activities of the group and keep our paperwork UpToDate we will hire admin/support for 6
weeks. This is in need as our volunteers are reduced and also due to age factor unable to keep up with
administration.
We include hiring a venue with light refreshments for our independence day and workshops.

Project start date

9th August 2021

Project completion
date

Page 155

15th September 2021
Form RT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£1480

b) Amount of grant required

£1480

c) Amount from other sources

£0

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from websites/catalogues. At least two quotations will be
required for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money.
Costs for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM
Revenue and Customs).
Expenditure item
1.

Cost

Independence Day Poetry session with performance with
Exhibition & 3 workshops (pems/singing) By MCRC

2. Venue Hire Independence day + 3 Workshops Castlemere
Community Centre with Light Refreshments
Pakistan Day £150.00
3 workshops
£150
3. Administration, Outreach, Publicity etc (Pakeeza group)
8 hours per week for 6 weeks

Page 156

£700.00

£300.00

£480.00

TOTAL 1480.00
Form RT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues for
proposed expenditure
SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abide by Rochdale Township Fund’s Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Rochdale Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Rochdale Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Rochdale Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Rochdale Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Full name

Position

Position

Date

Date

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from websites/catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form with supporting documentation to the Rochdale
Township Office Email: rochdale.township@rochdale.gov.uk and sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 157
Form RT03

Email:
Charity Registration: 1127743

01/07/21
Quotation
Pakeeza Women Group
Rochdale
Further to our meeting regarding your event please
see the following cost breakdown.

£
Organise poetry reading event with 6 writers 200
Exhibition of Independence Day
150
3 Workshops with 10 women (Songs/poetry) 150
Two musicians for live singing
200
Total

700

Page 158

C AST LE M E RE
C O M M U N I T Y C EN T R E

Quotation

www.castlemere.org.uk

Pakeeza Women's Group

DATE:

06 July 2021

OUR REF:

PWG/July 21

YOUR REF:

Qty

Description

Unit price

Total

Venue Hire (Pakistan day 16th August)

£150.00

£150.00

3 Workshops (Room Hire)
dates to confirm

£150.00

£150.00

Sub Total

£300.00

TOTAL

£300.00

Tweedale Street • Rochdale • Lancashire • OL11 1HH

PageRegistered
159 Charity No. 1085737

Telephone: 01706 645200 ~ Email: info@castlemere.org.uk
Company Limited by Guarantee • Registered in England & Wales 3887534

•

Pakeeza Women’s Group

Date: 4th July 2021

Quotation for Pakistan Day event plus 3 workshops

•
•
•
•

Administration of the group, publicity and marketing
Remote contacts with existing/potential new members
Organising and delivery of events and workshops
Exploring further opportunities for the group.

Support @ £80 per week for 6 weeks
Thanks

Page 160

£480.00

APPENDIX 4E

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale South

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Shakil Ahmed

Project Manager & Ext

M Aiken

Completed by

M Aiken

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/01/21

Date Completed

30/03/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Muriel Street dropped kerbs

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Install 6 pedestrian dropped crossings to improve access along the
street

Scheme comments from
Highways

N/A

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Improve access along the street

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
N/A

Risks that may change estimate
N/A

Total Estimated Fees

£200

Total Estimated Works Costs

£2800

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£3000

Amount Approved by Township

Page 161

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 8 weeks of approval

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.

Completion Date

Within 1 week of starting on site.

Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

x

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 162

x

APPENDIX 4F

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale Township

Name of Request Originator

Councillor O’Neill

Project Manager & Ext

John McAuley –

Completed by

John McAuley

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/05/21

Date Completed

30th June 2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Feature Lighting – Broadfield Park Slopes, The Esplanade, Rochdale
Town Centre

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To Feature Light the Trees and Slopes in Broadfeld Park (Adjacent
Rochdale Town Hall)– The lighting will have the functionally to be multicoloured and the settings will be programable – utilising existing street
lighting infrastructure to reduce clutter on the Highway.
Installation Costs


To floodlight using Colour Reach LED, attached to existing
heavy-duty street lighting column and associated cabling
/ control equipment in existing feeder pillar attached to street
lighting column 13 The Esplanade
£9,500.00

Accrual Cost (To Maintain Electrical Infrastructure and Socket)


To Accrue socket and electrical infrastructure into PFI for future
maintenance (for five years to be reviewed in year 6)



Column 13 - £47.75 (per Annum) - Total cost (£45.75 x 5) =
£238.75

Installation Costs £9,500.00 + Accrual Costs £238.75 = £9,738.75
Scheme comments from
Highways

The scheme will utilising existing street lighting infrastructure reducing
clutter on the Highway

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

To improve and enhance the nighttime environment.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

No

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
That equipment specified is available and there is clear access to the street lighting equipment (column 13
The Esplanade)

Page 163

Risks that may change estimate
Availability and increase unit costs of specified equipment – limited access to street lighting equipment due
to ongoing refurbishment work on the Rochdale Town Square Project
Total Estimated Fees (Nett)

N/A

Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett)

Installation Costs £9,500.00

**Total Cost (Nett)
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

Yes - Installation Costs £9,500.00 + Accrual Costs
£238.75 = £9,738.75

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 2 Months of Receiving Commission

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
eg start within two months of receiving commission. Evidence: fees being expended on system.
Completion Date
Evidence
eg completion within six months of start date. Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of
final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

30/06/2021

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 164

APPENDIX 4G

TC/10/21

Page 165

Page 166

Page 167

(See note below)

Note
Quote 1 for doors and windows
Cost £6,860 x 2 (downstairs and upstairs) = £13,720

Page 168

Page 169

QUOTE 1

Page 170

QUOTE 2

Page 171

QUOTE 1

Page 172

QUOTE 2

Page 173

Page 174

APPENDIX 4H

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM
Township

Rochdale South

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Shakil Ahmed

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan McKendrey

Completed by

Emma Hartley

Township Ref

Service Ref

TC/11/21

Date Completed

07/07/2021

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Traffic Calming on Bertha Road/ Rosefield Crescent/ Margaret Avenue
and installation of a pedestrian refuge traffic island on Milnrow Road.

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

Introduction of a 20mph Zone with self-enforcing traffic calming
measures consisting of approximately 3 Round-top humps, 20mph
Zone Entry signs, 20mph repeater signs, 20mph Roundel road
markings along Bertha Road/ Rosefield Crescent and Margaret Avenue
– Estimated costs £12500.00. (This estimate does not cover costs
should alteration to statutory services be required).
Consultation with local residents and introduction of a 20mph Speed
Limit and Road Hump Traffic Regulation Order - £4000.00.
Installation of pedestrian refuge traffic Island on Milnrow Road between
Bertha Road and Rosefield Crescent consisting of the removal of grass
verges to install dropped crossing(s) and tactile paving, installing the
pedestrian refuge Island with associated bollards, and illuminated
refuge beacon - Estimated costs £19000.00.
Highways fully support any schemes on the highway that improve the
safe and efficient movement of traffic.
Introduction of traffic calming measures that will reduce vehicle speeds.

Scheme comments from
Highways
Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)
Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate


The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.
 There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been approved
and signed off.
 The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.
 The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received
during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be
expended.
 This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.
Risks that may change estimate
 Objections are received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs.
 The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
Page 175
TfGM.

Total Estimated Fees (Nett)
Total Estimated Works Costs (Nett)
**Total Cost (Nett)
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£4000.00
£31,500.00
£35,500.00

Amount Approved by Township

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
• A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received by
Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.
• It is envisaged that a start date will be within 6 months of receiving the commission.
•Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees
Completion Date

Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
commencement of design

Evidence
• A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.
• It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.
• Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.
D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 176

x
x
x

rk
Pa
de ce
y
H Pla

ROW
MIL

265

D
ROA

276

Shelter

247

2

LA

258

E

1

264

D
IEL
LF

274

BE

Hyde Park
Mews

237

248
31

223

HBO
RAT

21

230

Proposed pedestrain
refuge island (location tbc)

235

R
E ST

L
AL
SH
ET
RE
ST

1

R
MA

11

1
20

211

228
2

209

12
203

2

2

Depot

HIGHWAYS AND ENGINEERING
SERVICE

218
9
19

ESS

TRAFFIC AND ROAD SAFETY
UNIT

208

8b

13

20mph Zone Entry Signs
& 20mph Roundels
14

14

8a

Waithlands

6
19
2

31

AD
RO

MARG
ARET

5

AVE UE
1

Proposed Road Humps
(approx. locations)

16

21

2
19

2

24

4

30

19
HA
RT
BE

16

1

25

Page 177

20mph Repeater Signs

11

8
18

Her Majesty's Office (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution
or civil proceedings.

8

17

12
24

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the
permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised
reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to
prosecution or civil proceedings. Rochdale Metropolitan Borough
Council Licence No: LA076279 2021

37

29
22

RO
S

EFI
ELD

Bertha Road/Rosefield Crescent
& Milnrow Road, Rochdale

53

CR
ESC

41

E

T

DRAWING TITLE

32

P
D

Proposed 20mph traffic calming
& installation of pedestrian
refuge island
SCALE

NTS

DATE

07/07/2021

42
52

62

49

6
1

26

DRAWING No.

53

28

Council Office

30

6

55

3

Surgery

9

5

DRAWN BY

EH

